
 

 DEPARTMENTS: AREA CODE (707)  

ADMINISTRATION 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 0  ◼  PLANNING 4 2 1 - 7 3 3 5  ◼  BUILDING 4 2 1 - 7 3 1 0  ◼  FINANCE 4 2 1 - 7 3 2 0  

FIRE 4 2 5 - 9 1 3 3  ◼  RECREATION & COMMUNITY SERVICES 4 2 1 - 7 2 0 0  ◼  POLICE 4 2 1 - 7 3 7 3  ◼  PUBLIC WORKS 4 2 1 - 7 3 4 0  

SUCCESSOR AGENCY 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 9  FAX 4 2 1 - 7 3 6 6  

 

CITY COUNCIL 

Mayor 

Alma Hernandez, Mayor Pro-Tem 

Jane Day 

Michael J. Hudson 

Wanda Williams 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

First and Third Tuesday 

Every Month 
 

 
 

 

A G E N D A 

 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE SUISUN CITY COUNCIL  

TUESDAY, MAY 3, 2022 

5:30 P.M. 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS -- 701 CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD -- SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA 

 

NOTICE 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953, subdivision (b), and in accordance with the provisions of SB 361 

(2021), the following Council/Successor Agency/Housing Authority meeting includes teleconference participation 

by: Council/Board Members Jane Day, Michael Hudson, Wanda Williams, Mayor Pro Tem Alma Hernandez. 

Teleconference locations are on file at City Hall, 701 Civic Center Blvd., Suisun City, CA 94585. 
 

FACE MASKS ARE RECOMMENDED FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WHILE IN CITY FACILITIES IF NOT 

FULLY VACCINATED.  IF YOU DO NOT HAVE A FACE MASK, ONE WILL BE PROVIDED FOR YOU.  

 

THE CITY COUNCIL HAS RESUMED IN-PERSON MEETINGS IN ADDITION TO ZOOM. A LIMITED NUMBER 

OF SEATS ARE AVAILABLE, TO RESERVE A SEAT PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY CLERK AT clerk@suisun.com 

OR 707 421-7302.   

 

ZOOM MEETING INFORMATION:  

WEBSITE: https://zoom.us/join 

MEETING ID:  ID:  845 2759 8295 

 
CALL IN PHONE NUMBER: (707) 438-1720 

 

REMOTE PUBLIC COMMENT IS AVAILABLE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

BY EMAILING CLERK@SUISUN.COM (PRIOR TO 4pm) OR  

VIA WEBSITE OR PHONE APPLICATION, ZOOM 

 

(If attending the meeting via phone press *9 to raise your hand and *6 to unmute/mute for public comment.) 
 

ROLL CALL 

Council Members 

 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION  
(Any items on this agenda that might be a conflict of interest to any Councilmembers/Boardmembers should be 

identified at this time.) 

 

mailto:clerk@suisun.com
https://zoom.us/join
mailto:CLERK@SUISUN.COM


May 3, 2022 City Council  Page 2 

 

  

PUBLIC COMMENT 
(Request by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this agenda per 

California Government Code §54954.3. Comments are limited to no more than 3 minutes unless allowable by the 

Mayor/Chair. Speaker cards are available on the table near the entry of the meeting room and should be given to the 

City Clerk. By law, no prolonged discussion or action may be taken on any item raised during the public comment 

period, although informational answers to questions may be given and matters may be referred for placement on a 

future agenda.) 

CLOSED SESSION  

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54950 the Suisun City Council will hold a Closed 

Session for the purpose of: 

City Council 

1. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR     

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 

Agency negotiator:  City Manager  

Employee organizations: 

SCPFA IAFF (Suisun City Professional Firefighters’ Association, International 

Association of Fire Fighters) 

2. PERSONNEL MATTERS 

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54957(b)(1) et seq. the Suisun City Council 

will hold a Closed Session for the purpose of Public Employee Performance Evaluation: City 

Attorney 

CONVENE OPEN SESSION 

Announcement of Actions Taken, if any, in Closed Session. 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

A complete packet of information containing staff reports and exhibits related to each item for the open session of this meeting, 

and provided to the City Council, are available for public review at least 72 hours prior to a Council /Agency/Authority Meeting at 

Suisun City Hall 701 Civic Center Blvd., Suisun City. Agenda related writings or documents provided to a majority of the 

Council/Board/Commissioners less than 72 hours prior to a Council/Agency/Authority meeting related to an agenda item for the 

open session of this meeting will be made available for public inspection during normal business hours. An agenda packet is also 

located at the entrance to the Council Chambers during the meeting for public review. The City may charge photocopying charges 

for requested copies of such documents. Assistive listening devices may be obtained at the meeting 
PLEASE NOTE: 

1. The City Council/Agency/Authority hopes to conclude its public business by 10:00 P.M. Ordinarily, no new items will be taken up after the 
10:00 P.M. cutoff and any items remaining will be agendized for the next meeting. The agendas have been prepared with the hope that all 

items scheduled will be discussed within the time allowed. 

2. Suisun City is committed to providing full access to these proceedings; individuals with special needs may call 421-7300. 
3. Agendas are posted at least 72 hours in advance of regular meetings at Suisun City Hall, 701 Civic Center Boulevard, Suisun City, CA. 

Agendas may be posted at other Suisun City locations including: 

• Suisun City Fire Station, 621 Pintail Drive, Suisun City, CA; 

• Suisun City Senior Center, 318 Merganser Drive, Suisun City, CA; 

• Joe Nelson Center, 611 Village Drive, Suisun City, CA;  

• Harbor Master Office, 800 Kellogg Street, Suisun City, CA. 

I, Donna Pock, Deputy City Clerk for the City of Suisun City, declare under penalty of perjury that the above agenda for the meeting of May 3, 

2022 was posted and available for review, in compliance with the Brown Act. 



 

DEPARTMENTS: AREA CODE (707)  

ADMINISTRATION 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 0  ◼  PLANNING 4 2 1 - 7 3 3 5  ◼  BUILDING 4 2 1 - 7 3 1 0  ◼  FINANCE 4 2 1 - 7 3 2 0  

FIRE 4 2 5 - 9 1 3 3  ◼  RECREATION & COMMUNITY SERVICES 4 2 1 - 7 2 0 0  ◼  POLICE 4 2 1 - 7 3 7 3  ◼  PUBLIC WORKS 4 2 1 - 7 3 4 0  

SUCCESSOR AGENCY 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 9  FAX 4 2 1 - 7 3 6 6  

 

CITY COUNCIL 

Mayor 

Alma Hernandez, Mayor Pro-Tem 

Jane Day 

Michael J. Hudson 

Wanda Williams 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

First and Third Tuesday 

Every Month 
, 

 

 

 
A G E N D A 

 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL ACTING AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY, 

AND HOUSING AUTHORITY 

TUESDAY, MAY 3, 2022 

6:30 P.M. 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS -- 701 CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD -- SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA 

 

NOTICE 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953, subdivision (b), and in accordance with the provisions of SB 361 

(2021), the following Council/Successor Agency/Housing Authority meeting includes teleconference participation 

by: Council/Board Members Jane Day, Michael Hudson, Wanda Williams, Mayor Pro Tem Alma Hernandez. 

Teleconference locations are on file at City Hall, 701 Civic Center Blvd., Suisun City, CA 94585. 
 

FACE MASKS ARE RECOMMENDED FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WHILE IN CITY FACILITIES IF NOT 

FULLY VACCINATED.  IF YOU DO NOT HAVE A FACE MASK, ONE WILL BE PROVIDED FOR YOU.  

 

THE CITY COUNCIL HAS RESUMED IN-PERSON MEETINGS IN ADDITION TO ZOOM. A LIMITED NUMBER 

OF SEATS ARE AVAILABLE, TO RESERVE A SEAT PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY CLERK AT clerk@suisun.com 

OR 707 421-7302.   

ZOOM MEETING INFORMATION:  

WEBSITE: https://zoom.us/join 

MEETING ID:  856 1345 4676 
CALL IN PHONE NUMBER: (707) 438-1720 

 

REMOTE PUBLIC COMMENT IS AVAILABLE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

BY EMAILING CLERK@SUISUN.COM (PRIOR TO 6 PM) OR  

VIA WEBSITE OR PHONE APPLICATION, ZOOM 

 

(If attending the meeting via phone press *9 to raise your hand and *6 to unmute/mute for public comment.) 
 

(Next Ord. No. – 794) 

 (Next City Council Res. No. 2022 – 63) 

Next Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency Res. No. SA2022 - 01) 

 (Next Housing Authority Res. No. HA2022 – 01) 

mailto:clerk@suisun.com
https://zoom.us/join
mailto:CLERK@SUISUN.COM


May 3, 2022 City Council / Successor Agency / Housing Authority Page 2 

 

 

 

ROLL CALL 

Council / Board Members 

Pledge of Allegiance  

Invocation  

CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION  
(Any items on this agenda that might be a conflict of interest to any Councilmembers / Boardmembers should be 

identified at this time.) 

REPORTS:  (Informational items only) 

1. City Manager/Executive Director/Staff 

PRESENTATION/APPOINTMENTS 
(Presentations, Awards, Proclamations, Appointments). 

2. Proclamations Presented - (Hernandez: ahernandez@suisun.com).  

a. Presentation of Proclamation Proclaiming May 21-27, 2022 as National Safe Boating 

Week.  

b. Presentation of Proclamation Proclaiming May 15-21, 2022,  as National Police Week and 

May 15, 2022 as Peace Officers Memorial Day.  

CONSENT CALENDAR 
Consent calendar items requiring little or no discussion may be acted upon with one motion. 

City Council 

3. Council Consideration and possible action to adopt Resolution No. 2022-__:  A Resolution of 

the City Council of the City of Suisun City proclaiming a local emergency persists and 

authorizing the use of remote teleconference meeting procedures by the City’s legislative 

bodies, as authorized by government code section 54953(e) et seq., through June 1, 2022 – 

(Folsom: gfolsom@suisun.com).  

4. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-___:  Authorizing the Chief of Police, or his 

designee, to Execute a Contract to Receive and Administer funding through the Boating Safety 

and Enforcement Financial Aid Program from the California Department of Boating and 

Waterways – (Roth:  aroth@suisun.com).  

5. Council Adoption of  Ordinance No. ___:  Adopting Policy 706 Relating to the Police 

Department’s use of Military Equipment, in Accordance with Assembly Bill 481 – (Roth: 

aroth@suisun.com).  

6. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-___:  Approving a Cooperative Implementation 

Agreement with Caltrans for the Implementation of Suisun City’s Green Stormwater 

Infrastructure Project along the Eastern Perimeter of the Park and Ride Lot – (Vue: 

nvue@suisun.com).  

7. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-___:  Authorizing the City Manager to Enter into the 

Seventh Amendment to the 1965 Agreement with the Fairfield-Suisun Sewer District (FSSD) – 

(Vue: nvue@suisun.com).  

 

mailto:ahernandez@suisun.com
mailto:gfolsom@suisun.com
mailto:aroth@suisun.com
mailto:aroth@suisun.com
mailto:nvue@suisun.com
mailto:nvue@suisun.com


May 3, 2022 City Council / Successor Agency / Housing Authority Page 3 

 

 

 

Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency  

8. Successor Agency Adoption of Resolution No. SA 2022-__:  Approving a Modification of the 

First Time Homebuyer Program to Remove the Provisions of the Loans’ Affordability 

Restrictions – (Lawton: klawton@suisun.com).  

Joint City Council / Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency / Housing Authority 

9. Council/Agency/Authority Approval of the Minutes of the Regular and/or Special Meetings of 

the Suisun City Council, Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency, and Housing 

Authority held on March 29, 2022 - (Skinner: askinner@suisun.com).   

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
(Request by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this agenda per 

California Government Code §54954.3. Comments are limited to no more than 3 minutes unless allowable by the 

Mayor/Chair. Speaker cards are available on the table near the entry of the meeting room and should be given to the 

City Clerk. By law, no prolonged discussion or action may be taken on any item raised during the public comment 

period, although informational answers to questions may be given and matters may be referred for placement on a 

future agenda.) 

PUBLIC HEARING   None 

GENERAL BUSINESS   

City Council 

10. Council Discussion and Direction: MCE – (Folsom: gfolsom@suisun.com).  

Joint City Council / Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency/Housing Authority 

11. Discussion and Direction:  Fiscal Year 2022-23 Annual Presentation of Conceptual Budget 

Strategy - (Deol:  ldeol@suisun.com).  

City Council 

12. The City Attorney recommends that the City Council take one of the following actions - (City 

Attorney). 

a. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-___: Appointing Councilmember 

____________ to the Vacant Mayor Seat For the Remainder of the Current Term; or, 

b. Direct staff to return to Council with the appropriate resolution(s) to hold an election on 

November 8, 2022 to satisfy the requirements of the general election and a special election 

in accordance with the Elections Code and the Government Code; or 

c. Take further action at Council’s discretion 

REPORTS:  (Informational items only) 

13. Council/Boardmembers Updates 

14. Non-Discussion Items 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

mailto:klawton@suisun.com
mailto:askinner@suisun.com
mailto:gfolsom@suisun.com
mailto:ldeol@suisun.com


May 3, 2022 City Council / Successor Agency / Housing Authority Page 4 

 

 

 

 

A complete packet of information containing staff reports and exhibits related to each item for the open session of this meeting, 

and provided to the City Council, are available for public review at least 72 hours prior to a Council /Agency/Authority Meeting at 

Suisun City Hall 701 Civic Center Blvd., Suisun City.  Agenda related writings or documents provided to a majority of the 

Council/Board/Commissioners less than 72 hours prior to a Council/Agency/Authority meeting related to an agenda item for the 

open session of this meeting will be made available for public inspection during normal business hours.  An agenda packet is also 

located at the entrance to the Council Chambers during the meeting for public review.  The City may charge photocopying charges 

for requested copies of such documents.  Assistive listening devices may be obtained at the meeting 

 
 

 
PLEASE NOTE: 

1. The City Council/Agency/Authority hopes to conclude its public business by 10:00 P.M.  Ordinarily, no new items will be 

taken up after the 10:00 P.M. cutoff and any items remaining will be agendized for the next meeting.  The agendas have been 

prepared with the hope that all items scheduled will be discussed within the time allowed. 

2. Suisun City is committed to providing full access to these proceedings; individuals with special needs may call 421-7300. 

3. Agendas are posted at least 72 hours in advance of regular meetings at Suisun City Hall, 701 Civic Center Boulevard, Suisun 

City, CA.  Agendas may be posted at other Suisun City locations including: 

• Suisun City Fire Station, 621 Pintail Drive, Suisun City, CA; 

• Suisun City Senior Center, 318 Merganser Drive, Suisun City, CA; 

• Joe Nelson Center, 611 Village Drive, Suisun City, CA;  

• Harbor Master Office, 800 Kellogg Street, Suisun City, CA. 

I, Donna Pock, Deputy City Clerk for the City of Suisun City, declare under penalty of perjury that the above agenda for the meeting 

of May 3, 2022 was posted and available for review, in compliance with the Brown Act. 

 



Item 2.a

1



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

2



Item 2.b

3



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

4



PREPARED/APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 

MEETING DATE: May 3, 2022 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:  Consideration and possible action to adopt Resolution No. 2022-__: A 

Resolution of the City Council of the City of Suisun City proclaiming a local emergency persists 

and authorizing the use of remote teleconference meeting procedures by the City’s legislative 

bodies, as authorized by government code section 54953(e) et seq., through June 1, 2022. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  None. 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Provide Good Governance 

BACKGROUND:   A number of laws have changed since the beginning of the COVID pandemic 

related to the Brown Act as it relates to teleconferenced public meetings, both from Governor 

Newsom’s Executive Orders and recently from the enactment of Assembly Bill 361, which took 

effect October 1, 2021, allowing continued remote teleconference meetings without traditional 

Brown Act compliance, provided certain findings can be made related to the ongoing state of 

emergency and subject to adherence to certain new noticing and public participation requirements.  

The City, as all public agencies in California, must now invoke and adhere to AB 361 and its 

modifications on certain elements of remote public meetings, or else revert to traditional Brown 

Act compliance. The major change associated with continuing remote meetings under AB 361 is 

that the public must now be allowed to make comments in real-time during the public comment 

period, either telephonically or electronically (such as by Zoom). No physical location for public 

comment need be provided.  

The other major change is that all public agencies, if they want to continue to conduct public 

meetings remotely, must adopt a resolution every 30 days making the findings of necessity to do so 

and affirming the measures in place to allow remote public comments by the public. 

On October 19, 2021 the City of Suisun City passed a resolution proclaiming that a local 

emergency persists and authorizing the transition to use of remote teleconference meeting 

procedures by City’s the legislative bodies, as authorized by government code section 54953(e) 

et seq., for the initial period of October 19, 2021 through November 18, 2021. 

STAFF REPORT:  This is a recurring resolution, after 30 days following the initial invocation of 

AB 361, continued reliance on AB 361 for subsequent meetings requires the following: 

1. Either the “state of emergency” must remain active,  or state or local officials have imposed

or recommended measures to promote social distancing; and

2. No later than 30 days after teleconferencing for the first time under AB 361 rules, and

every 30 days thereafter, the legislative body, by majority vote, finds that it has

reconsidered the circumstances of the state of emergency and at least one of the following

circumstances exist:

Item 3

5



o The state of emergency continues to impact the ability of the members to meet

safely in person; or

o State or local officials continue to impose recommended measures to promote

social distancing

Continued reliance on AB 361 will require adoption of a new resolution making the required 

findings every 30 days. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 

2022- ____: A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Suisun City proclaiming a local 

emergency persists and authorizing the transition to use of remote teleconference meeting 

procedures by City’s the legislative bodies, as authorized by government code section 54953(e) 

et seq., through June 1, 2022. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution 2022-___ A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Suisun City

proclaiming a local emergency persists and authorizing the transition to use of remote

teleconference meeting procedures by City’s the legislative bodies, as authorized by

government code section 54953(e) et seq., through June 1, 2022.

Item 3

6



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN 

CITY PROCLAIMING A LOCAL EMERGENCY PERSISTS AND 

AUTHORIZING THE TRANSITION TO USE OF REMOTE 

TELECONFERENCE MEETING PROCEDURES BY CITY’S THE 

LEGISLATIVE BODIES, AS AUTHORIZED BY GOVERNMENT 

CODE SECTION 54953(E) ET SEQ., THROUGH JUNE 1, 2022 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Suisun City is committed to preserving 

and nurturing public access, transparency, observation and participation in its meetings and 

the meetings of each of its legislative bodies; and  

WHEREAS, all meetings of the City’s legislative bodies are open and public, as 

required by the Ralph M. Brown Act, codified as Government Code sections 54950 et seq., so 

that any member of the public may attend, participate, and observe the City’s legislative 

bodies conduct their business; and 

WHEREAS, the Brown Act, as amended by Assembly Bill 361 (2021), amending 

Government Code section 54953(e) et seq., allows for remote teleconferencing observation 

and participation in meetings by members of a legislative body and members of the public, 

without compliance with the requirements of Government Code section 54953(b)(3), subject 

to the existence of certain conditions; and 

WHEREAS, the initial required condition is a declaration of a state of emergency by 

the Governor pursuant to the California Emergency Services Act, Government Code section 

8625, proclaiming the existence of conditions of disaster or of extreme peril to the safety of 

persons and property within the state and within the boundaries of the City, as provided in 

Government Code section 8558; and  

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, pursuant to Government Code Section 8625, 

Governor Newsom declared the existence of a state of emergency for the State of California, 

in response to the outbreak of respiratory illness due to a novel coronavirus (a disease now 

known as COVID-19); and 

WHEREAS, on March 16, 2020, the City’s Director of Emergency Services declared 

a local emergency for the City pursuant to Chapter 2.32 of the Suisun City Municipal Code, 

finding that conditions of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property have arisen 

within the City as a result of the COVID-19 virus and that these conditions are or are likely to 

be beyond the control of the services, personnel, equipment, and facilities of the City; and  

WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2020-40, 

ratifying the Director of Emergency Services’ declaration of local emergency; and 

WHEREAS, Government Code section 54953(e) further requires that state or local 

officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing; or, the 

legislative body of the City finds that meeting in person would present imminent risk to the 

health and safety of attendees; and  

Item 3 
Attachment 1

7



Resolution No. 2022- 

Adopted  

Page 2 of 3 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

WHEREAS, the Council hereby finds that such emergency conditions now exist in 

the City, such that meeting in person for the meetings of the legislative bodies of the City 

would present imminent risk to the health and safety of attendees as a result of the increased 

risk of the spread of the COVID-19 virus among those in attendance; and 

WHEREAS, the Council hereby finds that the state of emergency due to the COVID-

19 virus and the conditions related thereto has caused, and will continue to cause, conditions 

of extreme peril to the safety of persons within the City that are likely to be beyond the 

control of services, personnel, equipment, and facilities of the City, and thereby affirms, 

authorizes, and proclaims that the existence of a local emergency persists throughout the City, 

and ratifies the proclamation of state of emergency by the Governor of the State of California; 

and 

WHEREAS, the Council hereby finds that, as a consequence of the existing local 

emergency, the legislative bodies of the City shall conduct their meetings without compliance 

with Government Code section 54953(b)(3), and shall instead comply with the remote 

teleconference meeting requirements as authorized by Government Code section 54953(e) et 

seq.; and   

WHEREAS, the Council affirms that it will allow for observation and participation by 

Councilmembers and the public by allowing limited in-person attendance, as well as allowing 

public participation and comment in real time via Zoom or by telephone, in an effort to 

protect the constitutional and statutory rights of all attendees.  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

FINDS, RESOLVES, AND ORDERS AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated herein 

Resolution by reference. 

Section 2. The Council hereby recognizes and affirms the existence and conditions of 

a state of emergency as proclaimed by the Governor, the existence of emergency conditions in 

the City, and affirms, authorizes, and proclaims that the existence of a local emergency 

persists throughout the City. 

Section 3. The Council hereby ratifies the Governor of the State of California’s 

Proclamation of State of Emergency, effective as of its issuance date of March 4, 2020. 

Section 4. Further, the Council finds that holding the meetings of the City’s legislative 

bodies in person with no limitations to attendance would present imminent risk to the health 

and safety of attendees as a result of the increased risk of the spread of the COVID-19 virus 

among those in attendance, as required by Government Code section 54953(e) et seq. 

Section 5. The City Manager and legislative bodies of the City are hereby authorized 

and directed to take all actions necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of this Resolution 

including, conducting open and public meetings in accordance with Government Code section 

54953(e) and other applicable provisions of the Brown Act. 

Item 3 
Attachment 1

8



Resolution No. 2022- 

Adopted  

Page 3 of 3 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Section 6. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption and shall be 

effective until the earlier of (i) June 1, 2022, or (ii) such time the Council adopts a subsequent 

resolution in accordance with Government Code section 54953(e)(3) to extend the time 

during which the legislative bodies of the City may continue to teleconference without 

compliance with Government Code section 54953(b)(3). 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at the Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Suisun City duly held on May 3, 2022, by the following vote: 

AYES: Council Members: 

NOES: Council Members: 

ABSENT: Council Members: 

ABSTAIN: Council Members: 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 3rd day of May 2022. 

_________________________________ 

Anita Skinner 

City Clerk 

Item 3 
Attachment 1

9



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

10



PREPARED BY: Lisa Carlock, Police Sergeant 

REVIEWED BY: Aaron Roth, Police Chief 

APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 

MEETING DATE:   May 3, 2022 

CITY AGENDA ITEM: Resolution No. 2022-___:  A Resolution of the City Council of the 

City of Suisun City Authorizing the Chief of Police, or his designee, to Execute a Contract to 

Receive and Administer funding through the Boating Safety and Enforcement Financial Aid 

Program from the California Department of Boating and Waterways. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Contingent upon final approval of the budget, Suisun City could be awarded 

grant funds.  Suisun City’s match is through the contribution of boat tax revenue. 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Provide Good Governance; Ensure Public Safety 

BACKGROUND: Each year the Police Department applies for and has received grant funding 

from the CA Department of Boating and Waterways to cover the majority of the operation of our 

boating enforcement program. The Police Department has operated a boat patrol program for 

approximately 25 years.  

STAFF REPORT: Three police sergeants and up to six police officers are assigned to the patrol 

boat operation on an ancillary duty basis.  Throughout the year, the boat patrol is utilized in 

several events, such as boat/jet ski races, Fourth of July, Christmas at the Waterfront, launch 

ramp inspections, harbor patrol, sinking vessels, vessel accidents, search and rescue, stranded 

boaters and special assistance call outs by the United States Coast Guard and the Solano County 

Sheriff’s Department. The team also participates in regional enforcement efforts sponsored by 

the United States Coast Guard in conjunction with surrounding counties. The team also conducts 

enforcement operations for the Fleet Week event in San Francisco. 

During the prior completed federal fiscal year (2020/2021), the team worked approximately 583 

hours towards boating safety education and enforcement. There were 216 warnings issued and 1 

citation issued. There were 285 compliance inspection/checks completed. There were 2 search 

and rescue responses, 50 persons assisted, and 13 vessels assisted. 

RECOMMENDATION:  Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-___:  A Resolution of the 

City Council of the City of Suisun City Authorizing the Chief of Police, or his designee, to 

Execute a Contract to Receive and Administer funding through the Boating Safety and 

Enforcement Financial Aid Program from the California Department of Boating and Waterways. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No. 2022-___:  A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Suisun City

Authorizing the Chief of Police, or his designee, to Execute a Contract to Receive and

Item 4

11



Administer funding through the Boating Safety and Enforcement Financial Aid Program 

from the California Department of Boating and Waterways. 

2. Boating Safety and Enforcement Financial Aid Program Agreement

Item 4

12



 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

AUTHORIZING THE CHIEF OF POLICE, OR HIS DESIGNEE, TO EXECUTE A 

CONTRACT TO RECEIVE AND ADMINISTER FUNDING THROUGH THE 

BOATING SAFETY AND ENFORCEMENT FINANCIAL AID PROGRAM FROM 

THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF BOATING AND WATERWAYS 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Suisun City Police Department is eligible to participate in the 

Boating Safety and Enforcement Financial Aid Program through the California Department of 

Boating and Waterways; and 

WHEREAS, the Boating Safety and Enforcement Financial Aid Program will provide 

funding in the amount of $43,753.00 for the purpose of performing boating safety and 

enforcement activities as described in Title 14, California Code of Regulations Section 

6593.3; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Title 14, California Code of Regulations Section 6593.6, the 

City of Suisun City Police Department is required to enter into an annual contract with the 

California Department of Boating and Waterways in order to participate in the financial aid 

program.  

In addition, pursuant to Pursuant to Harbors and Navigation Code, Section 663.7 (e), 

The department shall not allocate funds to any city/county or a public agency within  unless 

the department receives a resolution adopted annually by the City Council/board of 

supervisors authorizing the city/county to participate in the program and certifying that the 

city/county will expend for boating safety programs during that year not less than an amount 

equal to 100 percent of the amount received by the county from personal property taxes on 

vessels.  The money allocated to a city/county pursuant to subdivision (a) shall be used only 

for boating safety and enforcement programs, as specified in subdivision (a), that are 

conducted in that city/county. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Suisun City Council hereby 

authorizes the Police Chief, or his designee, to execute those documents (application, contract 

and reimbursement claim forms) necessary to receive funding through the California 

Department of Boating and Waterways Boating Safety and Enforcement Financial Aid 

Program and further authorizes the Police Chief, or his designee, to administer said program. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at the Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Suisun City duly held on May 3, 2022, by the following vote: 

AYES:  Council Members: 

NOES:  Council Members: 

ABSENT:  Council Members: 

ABSTAIN: Council Members: 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 3rd day of May 2022.  

 

_________________________________  

Anita Skinner 

City Clerk 

Item 4 
Attachment 1

13



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

14



Page 1 of 3 

Boating Safety and Enforcement Financial Aid Program Agreement 

This agreement entered into this 1ST day of July, 2022, by and between the CALIFORNIA 

DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION, DIVISION OF BOATING AND WATERWAYS, 

hereinafter called “Department,” and the CITY OF SUISUN, hereinafter called “Agency”;  

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS, Contingent on approval of Governor’s Fiscal Year 2022-23 Budget Act, the Department 

intends to agree with Agency for the purpose of performing boating safety and enforcement activities as 

described in Title 14, California Code of Regulations Section 6593.3; and 

WHEREAS, Agency is equipped, staffed and prepared to provide such services on the terms and 

conditions set forth in this agreement and in accordance with Title 14, California Code of Regulations 

Section 6593 et seq.; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Title 14, California Code of Regulations Section 6593.6, Department shall 

enter into an annual agreement with each participating agency; 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed as follows: 

I. Applicable Law

Agency shall observe and comply with all applicable federal, state, and county statutes,

ordinances, regulations, directives, and laws, including, but not limited to, Harbors and

Navigation Code Section 663.7 and Section 6593 et seq. of Title 14, California Code of

Regulations.  Agreement shall be deemed to be executed within the State of California and

construed and governed by the laws of the State of California.

II. Description of Services

Agency shall conduct boating safety and enforcement activities in the jurisdiction of the Agency

in consideration of the payments hereinafter set forth.

III. Payments

A. Maximum Amount.  The amount the Department shall be obligated to pay for services

rendered under this agreement shall not exceed $43,753.00 for the agreement term in full

consideration of Agency’s performance of the services described in this agreement.

B. Rate of Payment.  The Department shall reimburse Agency in accordance with the

reimbursement procedures set forth in Title 14, California Code of Regulations Section

6593.9.

Item 4 
Attachment 2

15



Page 2 of 3 

C. Submission of Claims.  Agency shall submit claims for reimbursement to the Department

contact person identified in paragraph V of this contract on a ___monthly OR _X_quarterly

basis. (Please check one)

D. Failure to Submit Claims.  Claims for reimbursement shall be submitted within 60 days

following the last day of the reporting period.  Pursuant to Title 14, California Code of

Regulations 6593.9 (i), the Department may reduce an Agency’s allocation by five percent if

the Agency exceeds the sixty-day billing period and an additional five percent for every

thirty-day period thereafter that the Agency is late in filing a claim.

IV. Records

Agency shall maintain records pursuant to Section 6593.10 of Title 14, California Code of

Regulations.

V. Notice

Notice shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been served when it is deposited in the

United States mail, first class postage prepaid, and addressed as follows:

TO DEPARTMENT TO AGENCY 

Ms. Joanna Andrade City of Suisun 

Department of Parks and Recreation 701 Civic Center Blvd. 

Division of Boating and Waterways Suisun City, CA 94585 

One Capitol Mall, Suite 500 

Sacramento, CA  95814 

Either party may change the address to which subsequent notice and/or other communication can be sent 

by giving written notice designating a change of address to the other party. 

VI. Term

This agreement shall be for the term beginning July 1, 2022, and ending June 30, 2023.

VII. Prior Agreements

All prior agreements regarding this subject matter between Department and Agency are hereby

terminated effective June 30, 2022 prior to the term beginning date of this agreement.

VIII. Amendment

No amendment or variation of the terms of this agreement shall be valid unless made in writing

and signed by the parties hereto.

IX. Termination

Agency may terminate this agreement without cause in writing at any time.  Department may

terminate this agreement without cause upon a sixty (60) days written notice served upon the

Agency.

Item 4 
Attachment 2

16



Page 3 of 3 

X. Special Provisions

A. Agency hereby certifies that the obligations created by this agreement do not violate the

provisions of Sections 1090 to 1096 of the Government Code.

B. This agreement shall have no force or effect until signed by the Department, Agency, and

approved by the Department of General Services Legal Department, if required.

C. Agency shall continue with the responsibilities of this agreement during any dispute.

D. In the event of an allocation reduction for this program, an equal allotment will be decrease

from every participant.

F. An applicant agency provides a certified copy of the resolution or minute order from the

county board of supervisors/City Council with the application for financial aid under the

provisions of Section 663.7 of the Harbors and Navigation Code.  In the case of a local

government agency within a county, a certified copy of the resolution or minute order shall

accompany the application for financial aid from that local government entity, as well as a

certified copy of the resolution or minute order from its county board of supervisors, authorizing

the agency to participate in the program.

• The resolution or minute order shall:

(A) Authorize the chairperson, or designated representative, to sign the application and

contract.

(B) Authorize the chairperson, or designated agency representative, to sign the

department's form for each reimbursement claim.

(C) Authorize the county auditor to certify the amount of prior year vessel taxes received

by the county.

G. The department may deny the application if the applicant agency fails to provide the above-

referenced information or data.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement as of the day and year first 

above written. 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND 

RECREATION, DIVISION OF BOATING AND 

WATERWAYS 

By:  

California Department of Parks and Recreation, 

Division of Boating and Waterways 

Date: 

“Department” 

CITY OF SUISUN 

By:  

Title: _______________________________ 

Date:  

“Agency” 

Item 4 
Attachment 2

17



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

18



PREPARED BY: Aaron Roth, Police Chief 

REVIEWED / APPROVED BY Greg Folsom, City Manager 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 

MEETING DATE:  May 3, 2022 

CITY AGENDA ITEM: Council Adoption of  Ordinance No. 793: An Ordinance of the City 

Council of the City of Suisun City, California Adopting Policy 706 Relating to the Police 

Department’s use of Military Equipment, in Accordance with Assembly Bill 481 (Introduced and 

Reading Waived on April 19, 2022). 

FISCAL IMPACT: There is no fiscal impact. 

STRATEGIC PLAN: 

• Ensure Public Safety, Section 3.6 – Develop and implement emergency preparation,

response and recovery plans across the organization in collaboration with other community

efforts.

• Provide Good Governance, Section 4.7 – Improve productivity, efficiency, effectiveness,

customer service and citizen satisfaction in all areas of municipal organization.

BACKGROUND: 

On September 30, 2021, Governor Newsom signed Assembly Bill 481 to address the funding, 

acquisition, and use of military equipment by law enforcement agencies in California. Assembly 

Bill 481 has designated certain equipment as “military equipment,” regardless of whether it was 

procured from the military or not. Assembly Bill 481 is intended to increase transparency, 

accountability, and oversight surrounding the acquisition and use of military equipment by state 

and local law enforcement. 

Effective January 1, 2022, Assembly Bill (AB) 481 requires law enforcement agencies to obtain 

approval of the applicable governing body (City Council), by adoption of a military equipment use 

policy prior to taking certain actions relating to the funding, acquisition, or use of military 

equipment, as defined.  This approval process needs to begin prior to May 1, 2022. 

STAFF REPORT:  

Assembly Bill Number 481 (AB 481), codified as Government Code sections 7070 through 7075, 

requires that Suisun City Police Department (SCPD) begin the process of obtaining approval from 

City Council of its military equipment use policy by ordinance prior to May 1, 2022.  

The term “military equipment,” as used in AB 481, does not necessarily indicate equipment used 

by the military. Items deemed to be “military equipment” include, but are not limited to, unmanned 

aerial or ground vehicles, armored vehicles, command and control vehicles, pepper balls, less 

lethal shotguns, less lethal 40mm projectile launchers, long range acoustic devices, and light and 

sound diversionary devices. The list of items considered “military equipment” in AB 481 are 

employed by many law enforcement agencies across the country as best practices to enhance 

citizen and officer safety.  

Item 5

19



Provided as an attachment is a draft policy for consideration of adoption, as well as a list of 

equipment SCPD currently possesses that fall under the category of “military equipment” as 

defined by AB 481.  This draft policy was created in collaboration with Lexipol, who currently 

provides policy suggestions drafted by a team of attorneys to law enforcement organizations 

around the state and nation.  This draft was also reviewed by the Suisun City, City Attorney.  

This draft policy was also presented to and reviewed by the Suisun City Public Safety and 

Emergency Management Committee during one of its regular meetings on March 31, 2022, with 

full committee support of adopting this policy.   

On April 19, 2022 the City Council voted to introduce and waive reading of the proposed ordinance 

and policy. 

Lastly, a copy of the draft policy was also placed on the SCPD website for review prior to the 

committee meeting and is still accessible on the SCPD website with a specific notation this policy 

would be discussed at the April 19th, 2022, City Council meeting. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

1. Council Adoption of Ordinance No. 793: An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of

Suisun City, California Adopting Policy 706 Relating to the Police Department’s use of

Military Equipment, in Accordance with Assembly Bill 481.

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Suisun City, California Adopting Policy

706 Relating to the Police Department’s use of Military Equipment, in Accordance with

Assembly Bill 481.

Item 5

20



 

01107.0010/783651.1  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

ORDINANCE NO.  793 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN 

CITY, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING POLICY 706 RELATING TO THE 

POLICE DEPARTMENT’S USE OF MILITARY EQUIPMENT, IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH ASSEMBLY BILL 481 
 

 WHEREAS, On September 30, 2021, Governor Newsom signed Assembly Bill 481 

(AB 481) to address the funding, acquisition, and use of military equipment by law enforcement 

agencies in California. 

 WHEREAS, AB 481), codified as Government Code Sections 7070 through 7075, 

requires that Suisun City Police Department (SCPD) begin the process of obtaining approval 

from City Council of its military equipment use policy by ordinance prior to May 1, 2022. 

 WHEREAS, SCPD has drafted Policy 706, City of Suisun City Police Department 

Military Equipment Use Procedure Policy to comply with AB 481, listing all of its current 

“military equipment,” as that phrase is defined in Government Code Section 7070.  

WHEREAS, Policy 706 was written in collaboration with Lexipol, and presented to 

and reviewed by the Suisun City Public Safety and Emergency Management Committee at its 

March 31, 2022 regular meeting. 

WHEREAS, Policy 706 was also placed on the SCPD website for public review prior 

to the March 31, 2022 Public Safety and Emergency Management Committee meeting. 

WHEREAS, Policy 706 was reviewed by the City of Suisun City legal counsel. 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that Policy 706 meets the requirements of AB 481. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by 

reference. 

SECTION 2. Policy 706, City of Suisun City Police Department Military Equipment 

Use Procedure Policy, attached hereto as Attachment 1 and incorporated by reference, is hereby 

adopted. 

SECTION 3.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance, 

including the provisions of Policy 706, is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional 

by a decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision will not affect the validity 

of the remaining portions of this ordinance. The City Council hereby declares that it would have 

passed this ordinance and each and every section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase not 

declared invalid or unconstitutional without regard to whether any portion of the ordinance 

would be subsequently declared invalid or unconstitutional. 

SECTION 4. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to certify as the passage 

of this Ordinance and to give notice thereof by causing copies of this Ordinance to be posted in 

three public places throughout the City, or published in a county newspaper that is circulated in 

the City, within 15 days after its passage, there being no newspaper of general circulation 

printed and published within the City.  

Item 5 
Attachment 1

21



 

Ordinance No. 793 

Adopted _________, 2022 

Page 2 of 2 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

SECTION 5.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect on the 30th day after its 

second reading and adoption. 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council 

of the City of Suisun City, California, on this __________ day of ____________, 2022. 

 

  

Alma Hernandez, Mayor Pro Tem 

ATTEST: 

 

  

Anita Skinner, 

City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

AND LEGAL CONTENT: 

 

_______________________________ 

Aleshire & Wynder, LLP 

 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Anita Skinner, City Clerk of the City of Suisun City and ex-officio Clerk of the City 

Council of said City, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing ordinance was introduced 

at a regular meeting of the said City Council held on April 19, 2022 and passed and adopted at 

a regular meeting of said City Council held on ______________, 2022, by the following vote: 

 

AYES: Councilmembers:  _____________________________________ 

NOES: Councilmembers:    

ABSENT: Councilmembers:    

ABSTAIN: Councilmembers:    

 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 3rd day of May 2022. 

 

   

 Anita Skinner, 

 City Clerk 

 

Item 5 
Attachment 1

22



Policy

706
Suisun City Police Department

Suisun City PD Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/03/28, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Suisun City Police Department ***DRAFT*** Military Equipment - 1

Military Equipment
706.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines for the approval, acquisition, and reporting
requirements of military equipment (Government Code § 7070; Government Code § 7071;
Government Code § 7072). This policy will supersede previous SCPD Policy 210.

706.1.1   DEFINITIONS
Definitions related to this policy include (Government Code § 7070):

Governing body – The elected or appointed body that oversees the Department.

Military equipment – Includes but is not limited to the following:

• Unmanned, remotely piloted, powered aerial or ground vehicles.

• Mine-resistant ambush-protected (MRAP) vehicles or armored personnel carriers.

• High mobility multipurpose wheeled vehicles (HMMWV), two-and-one-half-ton trucks,
five-ton trucks, or wheeled vehicles that have a breaching or entry apparatus attached.

• Tracked armored vehicles that provide ballistic protection to their occupants.

• Command and control vehicles that are either built or modified to facilitate the
operational control and direction of public safety units.

• Weaponized aircraft, vessels, or vehicles of any kind.

• Battering rams, slugs, and breaching apparatuses that are explosive in nature. This
does not include a handheld, one-person ram.

• Firearms and ammunition of_.50 caliber or greater, excluding standard-issue shotguns
and standard-issue shotgun ammunition.

• Specialized firearms and ammunition of less than_.50 caliber, including firearms and
accessories identified as assault weapons in Penal Code § 30510 and Penal Code §
30515, with the exception of standard-issue firearms.

• Any firearm or firearm accessory that is designed to launch explosive projectiles.

• Noise-flash diversionary devices and explosive breaching tools.

• Munitions containing tear gas or OC, excluding standard, service-issued handheld
pepper spray.

• TASER® Shockwave, microwave weapons, water cannons, and long-range acoustic
devices (LRADs).

• Kinetic energy weapons and munitions.

• Any other equipment as determined by a governing body or a state agency to require
additional oversight.

Item 5 
Attachment 1

23



Suisun City Police Department
Suisun City PD Policy Manual

Military Equipment

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/03/28, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Suisun City Police Department ***DRAFT*** Military Equipment - 2

706.2   POLICY
It is the policy of the Suisun City Police Department that members of this department comply with
the provisions of Government Code § 7071 with respect to military equipment.

706.3   MILITARY EQUIPMENT COORDINATOR
The Chief of Police should designate a member of this department to act as the military equipment
coordinator. The responsibilities of the military equipment coordinator include but are not limited to:

(a) Acting as liaison to the governing body for matters related to the requirements of this
policy.

(b) Identifying department equipment that qualifies as military equipment in the current
possession of the Department, or the equipment the Department intends to acquire
that requires approval by the governing body.

(c) Conducting an inventory of all military equipment at least annually.

(d) Collaborating with any allied agency that may use military equipment within the
jurisdiction of Suisun City Police Department (Government Code § 7071).

(e) Preparing for, scheduling, and coordinating the annual community engagement
meeting to include:

1. Publicizing the details of the meeting.

2. Preparing for public questions regarding the department’s funding, acquisition,
and use of equipment.

(f) Preparing the annual military equipment report for submission to the Chief of Police
and ensuring that the report is made available on the department website (Government
Code § 7072).

(g) Establishing the procedure for a person to register a complaint or concern, or how that
person may submit a question about the use of a type of military equipment, and how
the Department will respond in a timely manner.

706.4   MILITARY EQUIPMENT INVENTORY
The following constitutes a list of qualifying equipment for the Department:

Description, quantity, capabilities, and purchase cost.

Defense Technology 40mm LMT Tactical Single Shot Launcher With Expandable Stock

o Description: Tactical single shot launcher that features an expandable ROGERS
Super Stock and an adjustable Integrated Front Grip (IFG) with light rail. The
ambidextrous Lateral Sling Mount (LSM) and QD mounting systems allow both a
single and two point sling attachment. The 40LMT will fire standard 40mm less lethal
projectiles propelled by smokeless powder, up to 4.8 inches in cartridge length. The
Picatinny Rail Mounting System will accept a wide array of enhanced optics/sighting
systems. Double action S&W trigger group, barrel length of 14 inches rifled bore.

o Cost: $985.70 (Curtis Blue Line Uniforms)

Item 5 
Attachment 1

24



Suisun City Police Department
Suisun City PD Policy Manual

Military Equipment

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/03/28, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Suisun City Police Department ***DRAFT*** Military Equipment - 3

o Quantity of four (4)

DEFENSE TECHNOLOGY, Model 6325 eXact iMpact 40mm sponge round.

o Description: 40 mm sponge Round delivers a point-of-aim, point-of-impact direct-
fire round in the form of a plastic body and sponge nose. It is a lightweight, high-
speed projectile that is spin stabilized via the incorporated rifling collar and the 40mm
launcher's rifled barrel. Due to the smokeless powder as the propellant, it has velocities
that are extremely consistent. This round has been effectively used for crowd control,
patrol, and tactical applications.

o Cost: $28.65 per round
o Quantity of one hundred ten (110)

REMINGTON 870 LESS LETHAL SHOTGUN,

o Description :  The Remington 870 Less Lethal Shotgun is used to deploy the less-
lethal 12-gauge Super-Sock Beanbag Round up to a distance of 75 feet. The range of
the weapon system helps to maintain space between officers and a suspect reducing
the immediacy of the threat, which is a principle of Deescalation.

o Cost: $800 per rifle
o Quantity: five (5)

12-GAUGE DRAG STABILIZED BEAN BAG ROUND

The Drag Stabilized™ 12-Gauge Round is a translucent 12-Gauge shell loaded with a 40-Gram
tear shaped bag made from a cotton and ballistic material blend and filled with #9 shot. This design
utilizes four stabilizing tails and utilizes smokeless powder as the propellant. The 12-Gauge Drag
Stabilized Round has secured its place as the Law Enforcement Communities' number one choice
for limiting the escalation of conflict where the deployment of lethal force is prohibited.

Cost: $7 per round

Quantity: Fifty (50)

706.5   APPROVAL
The Chief of Police or the authorized designee shall obtain approval from the governing body by
way of an ordinance adopting the military equipment policy. As part of the approval process, the
Chief of Police or the authorized designee shall ensure the proposed military equipment policy is
submitted to the governing body and is available on the department website at least 30 days prior
to any public hearing concerning the military equipment at issue (Government Code § 7071). The
military equipment policy must be approved by the governing body prior to engaging in any of the
following (Government Code § 7071):

(a) Requesting military equipment made available pursuant to 10 USC § 2576a.

Item 5 
Attachment 1

25



Suisun City Police Department
Suisun City PD Policy Manual

Military Equipment

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/03/28, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Suisun City Police Department ***DRAFT*** Military Equipment - 4

(b) Seeking funds for military equipment, including but not limited to applying for a grant,
soliciting or accepting private, local, state, or federal funds, in-kind donations, or other
donations or transfers.

(c) Acquiring military equipment either permanently or temporarily, including by borrowing
or leasing.

(d) Collaborating with another law enforcement agency in the deployment or other use of
military equipment within the jurisdiction of this department.

(e) Using any new or existing military equipment for a purpose, in a manner, or by a person
not previously approved by the governing body.

(f) Soliciting or responding to a proposal for, or entering into an agreement with, any other
person or entity to seek funds for, apply to receive, acquire, use, or collaborate in the
use of military equipment.

(g) Acquiring military equipment through any means not provided above.

706.6   COORDINATION WITH OTHER JURISDICTIONS
Military equipment used by other jurisdictions that are providing mutual aid to this jurisdiction shall
comply with their respective military equipment use policies in rendering mutual aid.

706.7   ANNUAL REPORT
Upon approval of a military equipment policy, the Chief of Police or the authorized designee should
submit a military equipment report to the governing body for each type of military equipment
approved within one year of approval, and annually thereafter for as long as the military equipment
is available for use (Government Code § 7072).

The Chief of Police or the authorized designee should also make each annual military equipment
report publicly available on the department website for as long as the military equipment is
available for use. The report shall include all information required by Government Code § 7072
for the preceding calendar year for each type of military equipment in department inventory.

706.8   COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT
Within 30 days of submitting and publicly releasing the annual report, the Department shall hold
at least one well-publicized and conveniently located community engagement meeting, at which
the Department should discuss the report and respond to public questions regarding the funding,
acquisition, or use of military equipment.

706.9   USE IN EXIGENT CIRCUMSTANCES
The Suisun City Police Department participates with the Solano County Sheriff's Special
Response Unit and works closely with local, county, state, and federal partners. In exigent
circumstances and with the approval of the Chief of Police or designee, military equipment may be
deployed from outside entities to promote the safety and security of community members. If the
Police Department acquires, borrows, or uses military equipment in exigent circumstances, it will

Item 5 
Attachment 1

26



Suisun City Police Department
Suisun City PD Policy Manual

Military Equipment

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/03/28, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Suisun City Police Department ***DRAFT*** Military Equipment - 5

provide written notification of the acquisition or use to the City Council within 30 days following the
commencement of such exigent circumstance, unless such information is confidential or privileged
under local, state or federal law.

Item 5 
Attachment 1

27



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

28



PREPARED BY:   Nick Lozano, Associate Engineer  

REVIEWED BY:  Nouae Vue, Public Works Director  

APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 

 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 
 

MEETING DATE:   May 3, 2022 
 

CITY AGENDA ITEM: Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022 - Approving a Cooperative 

Implementation Agreement with Caltrans for the Implementation of Suisun City’s Green 

Stormwater Infrastructure Project along the Eastern Perimeter of the Park and Ride Lot. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: No General Funds will be used. Caltrans will fully fund the design and 

construction of the City’s Green Stormwater Infrastructure Project (Project) located along the 

eastern perimeter of the Park and Ride Lot.  Caltrans funding allocation will be in the amount of 

up to $893,270, and requires that the City enter into a Cooperative Implementation Agreement 

(CIA) with Caltrans. 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN IMPACT:  Provide Good Governance and Enhance Environment.  
 

BACKGROUND: On November 19, 2015, Municipal Regional Stormwater Permit (MRP) was 

issued to the City of Suisun City along with 75 other cities, towns, counties, and districts within 

the San Francisco Bay.  This Permit outlines the State’s requirement for municipal agencies to 

address the water quality and flow-related impacts of stormwater runoff through public education 

program, implementing targeted pollutant reduction strategies and projects, and a monitoring 

program.   
 

STAFF REPORT: The concept for the City’s Project was developed as part the City’s Green 

Stormwater Infrastructure Plan, required as part of the City’s MRP. See attached Location Map, 

Attachment No. 2. 

 

The goals of the Project are to reduce the amount of trash and to improve the quality of stormwater 

entering the Suisun Marsh and San Francisco Bay ecosystems, as well as to beautify this gateway 

to the City’s Historic Waterfront District.  These goals will be achieved by constructing a green 

stormwater infrastructure feature and a full trash capture device within the project area. 

 

The existing Park and Ride Lot and the surrounding drainage area is approximately 3.65 acres with 

narrow landscaped islands between the parking bays and conventional drainage infrastructure 

including curbs, gutters, and curb inlets that allow the runoff to flow into the storm drain system. 

The parking lot slopes towards a drainage ditch on the eastern perimeter of the parking lot, covered 

with primarily non-native grasses, bare earth, and rock.  The ditch is well suited for conversion into 

a bioretention swale to slow and treat runoff from the parking lot and the off ramp.   

 

The Park and Ride Lot is located within Caltrans’ right-of-way and the Project will be 

implemented in partnership with Caltrans District 4. City staff and the Solano Stormwater Alliance 

(SSA) Program Manager (Emily Corwin of the Fairfield-Suisun Sewer District) have coordinated 

this project with District 4, and Caltrans has agreed to fully fund the design and construction of the 

Item 6

29



 
 

Project in the amount up to $893,270.  While the City Public Works Department currently 

maintains the project area through a maintenance agreement with Caltrans, receiving Caltrans 

funding will trigger a requirement for the City to enter into a CIA with Caltrans.  See Attachment 

No. 3 for a copy of Caltrans’ standard CIA, which has been reviewed and approved by the City’s 

Attorney.  City staff and the SSA Program Manager are currently in discussions with Caltrans on 

the possibility of Caltrans contributing additional funds towards the City’s maintenance of the 

improvements upon Project completion. 

 

City staff recommends approving the attached CIA for the benefit of the City of Suisun City and of 

Caltrans to make progress on achieving requirements of the MRP. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-___:  A Resolution of the 

City Council of the City of Suisun City Approving a Cooperative Implementation Agreement with 

Caltrans for the Implementation of Suisun City’s Green Stormwater Infrastructure Project along 

the Eastern Perimeter of the Park and Ride Lot. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No. 2022-___:  A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Suisun City 

Approving a Cooperative Implementation Agreement with Caltrans for the Implementation of 

Suisun City’s Green Stormwater Infrastructure Project along the Eastern Perimeter of the Park 

and Ride Lot.  

2. Location Map. 

3. Cooperative Implementation Agreement (11 pages total). 

 

 

Item 6

30



 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

APPROVING A COOPERATIVE IMPLEMENTATION AGREEMENT WITH 

CALTRANS FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION OF SUISUN CITY’S STORMWATER 

INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECT ALONG THE EASTERN PERIMETER OF THE 

PARK AND RIDE LOT 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Suisun City (City) is a permittee under the Municipal Regional 

Stormwater NPDES Permit (Permit) for the San Francisco Bay Region, Order No. R2-2015-

0049, NPDES Permit No. CAS612008 (the “MS4 Permit”), issued by the San Francisco 

Regional Water Quality Control Board on November 19, 2015; and 

WHEREAS, the Permit requires the City to prepare a Green Stormwater Infrastructure 

(GSI) Plan, which was completed in 2019; and  

WHEREAS, the City’s GSI Plan identified a project along the eastern perimeter of the 

Park and Ride Lot to clean stormwater and decrease the amount of trash entering the Suisun 

Marsh and the San Francisco Bay ecosystems; and 

WHEREAS, at said location, the City’s Green Stormwater Infrastructure Project 

(Project) will convert an existing ditch into a bioretention swale and install a trash capture 

device; and  

WHEREAS, the City currently maintains the Park and Ride Lot through a maintenance 

agreement with Caltrans; and 

WHEREAS, the Project will beautify this gateway to the City’s Historic Waterfront 

District, and will be implemented in partnership with Caltrans, which will fully fund the design 

and construction of the Project in the amount up to $893,270; and  

WHEREAS, receiving Caltrans funding will trigger a requirement for the City to enter 

into the attached Cooperative Implementation Agreement (CIA) with Caltrans; and  

WHEREAS, it is to the benefit of the City to enter into the CIA; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Suisun 

City supports a resolution approving a Cooperative Implementation Agreement between the 

City and Caltrans for the implementation of Suisun City’s Green Stormwater Infrastructure 

Project and to secure Caltrans funding for the design and construction of this project.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Suisun 

City duly held on Tuesday, the 3rd day of May 2022, by the following vote: 

AYES: Council Members:    

NOES: Council Members:    

ABSENT: Council Members:    

ABSTAIN: Council Members:    

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 3rd day of May 2022. 

 

   

 Anita Skinner 

 City Clerk 

Item 6 
Attachment 1

31



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

32



L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 M

A
P

 
S

to
rm

w
at

er
 G

re
en

 I
n
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 P
ro

je
ct

 a
lo

ng
 th

e 
Ea

st
er

n 
Pe

rim
et

er
 o

f t
he

 P
ar

k 
an

d 
R

id
e 

Lo
t 

P
R

O
JE

C
T 

LO
C

A
TI

O
N

 
(G

re
e

n
 a

n
d

 L
ig

h
t 

G
re

e
n

) 

Lo
tz

 W
ay

 

Main Street 

A
tt

ac
h
m

en
t 

N
o
. 
2

 

Item 6 
Attachment 2

33



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

34



Item 6 
Attachment 3

35



Item 6 
Attachment 3

36



Item 6 
Attachment 3

37



Item 6 
Attachment 3

38



Item 6 
Attachment 3

39



Item 6 
Attachment 3

40



Item 6 
Attachment 3

41



Item 6 
Attachment 3

42



Item 6 
Attachment 3

43



Item 6 
Attachment 3

44



Item 6 
Attachment 3

45



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

46



PREPARED BY:   Amanda Dum, Management Analyst  

REVIEWED BY:  Nouae Vue, Public Works Director  

APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 

 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 
 

MEETING DATE:  May 3, 2022  

 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:  Adoption of Council Resolution No. 2022-__:  Authorizing the City 

Manager to Enter into the Seventh Amendment to the 1965 Agreement with the Fairfield-Suisun 

Sewer District (FSSD). 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  There would be no fiscal impact on the General Fund.  Suisun City will 

now be allocated $1,770,000 each Fiscal Year by the Fairfield-Suisun Sewer District (FSSD).  

This allocation is to assist the City with the much needed sewer system rehabilitation and 

replacement projects within the City maintained portion of the existing sewer infrastructure. 

These funds will be transferred to the City by August 1st of each new Fiscal Year.  

 

STRATEGIC PLAN IMPACT:  Provide Good Governance. 

 

BACKGROUND:  In October 2020, the FSSD Board of Directors awarded a professional 

services agreement to Carollo Engineers for development of a Collection System Asset 

Management Plan (CSAMP). The scope of work included evaluating all collection system assets 

owned by the District, City of Fairfield, and City of Suisun City. Specifically, the evaluation 

entailed calculating the remaining useful life for every asset, determining the long-term funding 

needed to support both routine operation and maintenance (O&M) and end-of-life rehabilitation 

and/or replacement (R&R) of those assets, and developing a short-term Capital Improvement 

Program for each agency to address known deficiencies. In October 2021, District staff presented 

the results of the study to the FSSD Board of Directors and received feedback on the study 

approach, the results, and next steps. The study identified a significant need for additional 

funding for rehabilitation and/or replacement of collection system assets at the end of their life. 

This funding need was included in the District’s Cost of Service and Rate Study that was 

approved by the Board of Directors in March 2022. 

 

There is an existing agreement between the District, the City of Fairfield, and the City of Suisun 

City, originally executed on February 12, 1965, and subsequently amended six times (1965 

Agreement). The 1965 Agreement governs ownership, maintenance, and funding responsibilities 

for collection system assets in the District’s service area. On April 20, 2022, the FSSD Board of 

Directors approved amending the existing agreement to include collection system rehabilitation 

and replacement (R&R) funding. 

 

STAFF REPORT: The District’s Cost of Service and Rate Study included collection system 

R&R funding of $1,770,000 per year for the City of Suisun City, based on the current age, 

condition, and aging profile of the assets owned by the City.  The allocated amount, key 

deadlines for fund transfers, and other logistics are detailed in the Seventh Amendment to the 

1965 Agreement (Attachment 2). 

 

 

Item 7

47



The Seventh Amendment to the 1965 Agreement includes the following key elements: 

 

• Each July 1, the District will transfer $1,830,000 to a City of Fairfield Collection System 

R&R Reserve Fund, and $1,770,000 to a City of Suisun City Collection System R&R 

Reserve Fund. Each reserve fund will be held by the District. 

• Prior to every fiscal year, each City will budget their anticipated expenditures for 

Collection System R&R for the upcoming fiscal year. This amount will be included in the 

District’s budget and presented to the District’s Board of Directors for approval. 

• The budgeted amount will be transferred from each City’s Collection System R&R 

Reserve Fund to each City’s collection system enterprise fund by August 1 of each year. 

Overspent or underspend funds from one year will be “trued up” in the next fiscal year. 

• At least every five years, each City will provide the District with all new collection 

system inspection data. The District will update the CSAMP, re-assess collection system 

R&R funding needs, and include these needs in the District’s Cost of Service and Rate 

Study to establish appropriate funding. 

• The District will transfer ownership of a collection system vehicle and inspection 

equipment to the City of Fairfield so Fairfield can assume responsibility for its own 

collection system inspection. Additional funding (10% of maintenance funding) will be 

provided to support this.  

The addition of this new funding source for R&R repairs on the City existing sewer 

infrastructure will provide some assistance to the City in addresses areas in need of R&R 

type repairs.  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2022-

___:  Authorizing the City Manager to Enter into the Seventh Amendment to the 1965 Agreement 

with the Fairfield-Suisun Sewer District (FSSD). 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No. 2022-__: Authorizing the City Manager to Enter into the Seventh 

Amendment to the 1965 Agreement with the Fairfield-Suisun Sewer District (FSSD). 

2. Seventh Amendment to the 1965 Agreement with the Fairfield-Suisun Sewer District 

(FSSD) 

Item 7

48



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

RESOLUTION 2022-___ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SUISUN CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING THE CITY 

MANAGER TO ENTER INTO THE SEVENTH AMENDMENT TO THE 1965 

AGREEMENT WITH THE FAIRFIELD-SUISUN SEWER DISTRICT (FSSD). 

WHEREAS, on February 12, 1965, the City of Suisun City and the Fairfield-Suisun 

Sewer District (FSSD) entered into an agreement relative to collection of sanitary sewer 

charges herein called “1965 Agreement,” which was amended on 4/20/76, 7/25/77, 11/1/88, 

3/23/92, 3/23/98, and 11/16/04; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes the need to update the terms of the 1965 

Agreement related to maintenance of local sewer lines; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds the Seventh Amendment to the 1965 Agreement 

acceptable and beneficial to the City.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Suisun 

City does hereby:  Authorize the City Manager to enter into the Seventh Amendment to the 1965 

Agreement and to take all steps necessary and appropriate to implement this Resolution. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Suisun City, duly held on the 3rd day of May 2022 by the following vote: 

AYES: Councilmembers: __________________________________________ 

NOES: Councilmembers: 

ABSENT: Councilmembers: 

ABSTAIN: Councilmembers: 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 3rd day of May 2022. 

Anita Skinner 

City Clerk 

Item 7 
Attachment 1

49



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

50



1 of 5 

SEVENTH AMENDMENT TO 1965 AGREEMENT 
 

This SEVENTH AMENDMENT TO 1965 AGREEMENT (“7th Amendment”) is made and entered into 
this ___________ day of ___________, 2022, by and between the FAIRFIELD-SUISUN SEWER DISTRICT, a 
special district organized and existing under the laws of the State of California (“DISTRICT”), the CITY OF 
FAIRFIELD, a municipal corporation, and the CITY OF SUISUN CITY, a municipal corporation; herein 
individually called “CITY” or collectively called “CITIES.” 

 
WHEREAS, on February 12, 1965, the DISTRICT and CITIES, entered into an agreement for 

collection of sanitary sewer charges, which was amended previously on April 20, 1976, July 25, 1977, 
November 1, 1988, March 23, 1992, March 23, 1998 and November 22, 2004 (collectively, as amended, 
the “1965 AGREEMENT”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the DISTRICT has completed a comprehensive study of sanitary sewer assets owned 

by the DISTRICT and the CITIES, using current video inspection data and industry-standard asset 
management practices, to project rehabilitation and replacement funding requirements for each party 
over the next one hundred years, and established a framework to frequently update the asset 
management plan with new data as it becomes available; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the DISTRICT has adopted a sewer service charge that will 

generate revenue to support the rehabilitation and replacement of sanitary sewers for the DISTRICT and 
CITIES; and 

 
WHEREAS, the CITY OF FAIRFIELD desires to assume responsibility for inspecting its collection 

system, which has previously been inspected by the DISTRICT, and the CITY OF SUISUN CITY desires to 
have the DISTRICT continue inspecting its collection system; and 

 
WHEREAS, the DISTRICT and CITIES have jointly recognized the need to update the terms of the 

1965 AGREEMENT related to funding of sewer rehabilitation and replacement. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed as follows: 
 

1. The 1965 AGREEMENT is amended to add Paragraph 7 to read as follows: 
 
“7. As of July 1, 2022, the DISTRICT will establish two reserve funds within its Operations 

and Maintenance Fund: City of Fairfield Collection System Rehabilitation/Replacement 
(R/R) Reserve Fund; and a City of Suisun City Collection System R/R Reserve Fund.  The 
amount of R/R funding has been calculated from the Collection System Asset 
Management Plan conducted by the DISTRICT with participation from the CITIES. 

 
 7.1. Beginning July 1, 2022, and repeating every July 1 until July 1, 2026, the 

DISTRICT will deposit funds into the Collection System R/R Reserve Fund for the 
following fiscal year, allocated between the parties as follows:  

 

Item 7 
Attachment 2

51



2 of 5 

7.1.1.  $1,830,000 to the City of Fairfield Collection System R/R Reserve Fund, 
and 

7.1.2.  $1,770,000 to the City of Suisun City Collection System R/R Reserve Fund. 
 

7.2. The use of reserve funds in each Collection System R/R Reserve Fund will be 
determined by the party named on the reserve fund, provided that they are used for 
rehabilitation and/or replacement of collection system assets owned by the named 
party.  Any interest income received on funds in each Collection System R/R Reserve 
Fund will be attributable to that individual Collection System R/R Reserve Fund. 
 
7.3. By August 1 of each year, the DISTRICT will provide to each CITY a report 
detailing the credits, debits, and current balance of its Collection System R/R Reserve 
Fund during the prior fiscal year. 
 
7.4. DISTRICT and CITIES may loan funds between Collection System R/R Reserve 
Funds, but only if a separate, written agreement is in place between the DISTRICT and 
the CITY or CITIES participating in the loan, detailing repayment terms and interest 
charges. 
 
7.5. By March 30 of each year, each CITY shall provide to DISTRICT: 
 

7.5.1.  The projected amount that will be spent by the end of the current fiscal 
year on Collection System R/R Reserve funded projects; and 

7.5.2.  A forecast of expenditures from the Collection System R/R Reserve Fund 
for the next five (5) fiscal years.  These projected expenditures will be 
listed in the DISTRICT’s budget.  By approving the budget, the DISTRICT’s 
Board of Directors will authorize the drawdown of the reserve fund 
balance.  Approval of individual projects shall be the responsibility of the 
governing body of each party. 

7.5.3.  The budget for Collection System R/R projects shall include a construction 
cost estimate, plus a 37.5% markup (10% for engineering design, 10% for 
construction management, 7.5% for environmental/legal, and 10% 
contingency).   

 
7.6.  Beginning on August 1, 2022, and repeating every August 1 until August 1, 
2026, DISTRICT will transfer the total budgeted value of all Collection System R/R 
projects for the next fiscal year to each CITY from its respective Collection System R/R 
Reserve Fund, provided a positive balance remains in that CITY’s reserve fund.  CITIES 
shall deposit the transferred funds into each CITY’s collection system enterprise fund (as 
established in Paragraph 5.2) and use them exclusively to fund Collection System R/R 
projects budgeted for that fiscal year.  At the end of each fiscal year, the amount 
transferred to each CITY shall be trued-up as follows: 
 

Item 7 
Attachment 2

52



3 of 5 

7.6.1.  If, for each CITY, the actual spend in a fiscal year is less than what was 
budgeted and paid to the CITY, the additional funds paid by the DISTRICT 
shall be deducted from the following year’s transfer. 

7.6.2.  If, for each CITY, the actual spend in a fiscal year is greater than what was 
budgeted and paid to the CITY, the additional funds required by the CITY 
will be added to the following year’s transfer, provided a positive balance 
remains in the CITY’s Collection System R/R Reserve Fund. 

7.6.3.  Additional transfers to the CITIES may be made outside of the fiscal year 
end to accommodate emergency work or budget deviations with the 
approval of the DISTRICT’s Board of Directors.” 

 
7.7. In expending Collection System R/R Reserve Fund money, CITIES shall comply 
with all applicable laws and regulations. 
 

2. The 1965 AGREEMENT is amended to add Paragraph 8 to read as follows: 
 

“8. Prior to September 30, 2026, and every five years thereafter, DISTRICT will update the 
Collection System Asset Management Plan funding model in coordination with the 
CITIES.  The updated funding model will be used to recalculate Collection System R/R 
funding needs over the next five-year window, and to adjust sewer rates as needed to 
support proper maintenance, rehabilitation, replacement, and reserve fund balance. 

 
8.1. Prior to September 30, 2025, and at least once every five years thereafter, each 
CITY shall provide to DISTRICT all collection system inspection data that has been 
collected since the prior Collection System Asset Management Plan update.  This data 
will be used to adjust modelled assumptions about remaining useful life for each 
collection system asset owned by each agency.” 

 
3. The 1965 AGREEMENT is amended to add Paragraph 9 to read as follows: 

 
“9. Each party shall be responsible for conducting closed-circuit television (CCTV) 
inspections of its collection system assets such that every pipe is inspected at least once every 
five years.  Requirements of the CCTV inspection program are as follows: 
  

9.1. As of July 1, 2022, responsibility for CCTV inspections shall be as follows: 
 

9.1.1.  For DISTRICT sewer lines, DISTRICT shall clean the pipes and conduct 
inspections. 

9.1.2.  For CITY OF SUISUN CITY sewer lines, CITY OF SUISUN CITY shall clean the 
pipes and DISTRICT will conduct inspections. 

9.1.3.  For CITY OF FAIRFIELD sewer lines, the CITY OF FAIRFIELD will clean the 
pipes and conduct inspections. 

 

Item 7 
Attachment 2

53



4 of 5 

9.2. All CCTV data shall be collected, and defects coded, in a manner that complies 
with the National Association of Sewer Service Companies (NASSCO) Pipeline 
Assessment Certification Program (PACP), using a software system that is compatible 
with DISTRICT’s Collection System Asset Management model. 
 
9.3. As of July 1, 2022, the DISTRICT shall transfer ownership of one CCTV inspection 
van (2008 Freightliner Sprinter 3500) to the CITY OF FAIRFIELD for CCTV inspection of 
CITY OF FAIRFIELD collection system assets.  The van will include all equipment 
necessary for the completion of CCTV inspections.  DISTRICT will provide maintenance 
records of the van to the CITY OF FAIRFIELD, and DISTRICT will provide training to CITY 
OF FAIRFIELD staff on operation of the van and CCTV inspection equipment.   
 
 9.3.1.  To fund the CCTV inspection of CITY OF FAIRFIELD collection system 
assets, the DISTRICT will transfer an additional 10% added to the monthly operation and 
maintenance payments identified in Paragraph 5.1. 
 
 9.3.2. CITY OF FAIRFIELD agrees to assume ownership of the CCTV inspection 
van on an as-is basis with all faults, latent and patent.  DISTRICT makes no warranties, 
express or implied, as to the nature, quality or condition of the CCTV inspection van, 
including, but not limited to, any implied warranties of merchantability and fitness for a 
particular purpose or non-infringement, or otherwise. 

 
DISTRICT and CITIES acknowledge that in all other respects the 1965 AGREEMENT, as amended on April 
20, 1976; July 25, 1977; November 1, 1988; March 23, 1992; March 23, 1998; and November 22, 2004 is 
and remains in effect.  
 
IN WITNESS the parties hereto have executed this Seventh Amendment to the 1965 AGREEMENT on the 
day first above written. 
 
       FAIRFIELD-SUISUN SEWER DISTRICT 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       President, Board of Directors 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________________ 
District Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________________ 
District Counsel 
        

Item 7 
Attachment 2

54



5 of 5 

      
 CITY OF FAIRFIELD 
 
       _______________________________________ 
       Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________________ 
City Attorney 
 
 
       CITY OF SUISUN CITY 
 
       _______________________________________ 
       Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________________ 
City Attorney 
 

Item 7 
Attachment 2

55



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

56



______________________________________________________________________________ 

PREPARED BY: Kathy Lawton, Housing Manager 

REVIEWED/APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 

 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 
 

MEETING DATE:  May 3, 2022 

 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:  Successor Agency Adoption of Resolution No. SA 2022-__:  A 

Resolution of the Suisun City Council Acting as the Successor Agency to the Redevelopment 

Agency of the City of Suisun City Approving a Modification of the First Time Homebuyer 

Program to Remove the Provisions of the Loans’ Affordability Restrictions. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  There would be a positive impact if the property owner decided to sell the 

property and payoff the loan.  Impact explained in detail in the staff report section of this agenda 

transmittal. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN IMPACT:  Provide Good Governance. 

 

BACKGROUND:  In 2009 the City initiated its Foreclosure First-Time Homebuyer Program.  

The City created the program to eliminate blight, enhance property values, and provide 

affordable home ownership opportunities to low- and moderate-income households within the 

existing neighborhoods of Suisun City.  Under the terms of the loan, participants were eligible to 

receive 25-35% of the total purchase price (sales price plus closing costs) and make no monthly 

payments on the loan if the home remained owner occupied. 

From January 2009 through July 2011, a total of 39 loans were issued to first-time homebuyer 

households.  Currently, there are a remaining 23 participant households.  The loan program 

ended as of July 2011 due to the dissolution of the Redevelopment Agency. 

A provision of the program was an Affordability Restriction.  Under the affordability restriction, 

the homeowner is limited to a restricted resale price instead of being allowed to sell at market 

value.  The restriction exists to ensure that these homes remain affordable to other/future first-

time homebuyers for a period of 45 years.  Each participant household signed the following 

recorded documents which either explained or referenced the affordability restriction: 

i. Loan Agreement, Resale Restriction and Option to Purchase 

ii. Notice of Affordability Restrictions 

iii. Deed of Trust 

Another provision of the loan program is a sharing of the equity appreciation in the property 

based upon the City’s financial investment into the purchase of the home.  When the loans are 

repaid, the homeowner is responsible for repaying the initial amount loaned as well as the equity 

share. 
 

STAFF REPORT: The City has reviewed the impact of the program’s affordability restriction 

as it relates to current market value of homes in Suisun City.  Of the remaining 23 participant 

loans, the following has been determined: 

i. Average Purchase Price of homes - $197,890 

Item 8

57



 

 

ii. Average City Loan toward home purchases - $47,042 

iii. Average City Percentage Investment - 24% of the total purchase price 

iv. Average Restricted Resale Price of homes - $267,200 

v. Average Current Market Value of homes - $567,800 

Using the above average figures, the following has been determined: 

Sale of Property at Restricted Price Sale of Property at Market Value 

Payoff of City’s Loan 

Seller Net before 1st Mortgage Payoff 
$ 62,330 

$204,870 

Payoff of City’s Loan 

Seller Net before 1st Mortgage Payoff 
$133,788 

$434,012 
 

Holding the First Time Homebuyers to the restricted resale price substantially diminishes the equity 

investment of the homeowner.  While removal of the affordability restriction from the loan will 

require the homeowner to pay a higher equity share to the City, the overall impact is positive to 

homeowner and to the City as well. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the Successor Agency Adopt Resolution No. 

SA 2022-__:  A Resolution of the Suisun City Council Acting as the Successor Agency to the 

Redevelopment Agency of the City of Suisun City Approving a Modification of the First Time 

Homebuyer Program to Remove the Provisions of the Loans’ Affordability Restrictions. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No. SA 2022-__:  A Resolution of the Suisun City Council Acting as the 

Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Suisun City Approving a 

Modification of the First Time Homebuyer Program to Remove the Provisions of the 

Loans’ Affordability Restrictions. 

Item 8

58



 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

RESOLUTION NO. SA 2022- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SUISUN CITY COUNCIL ACTING AS THE 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY 

OF SUISUN CITY APPROVING A MODIFICATION OF THE FIRST TIME 

HOMEBUYER PROGRAM TO REMOVE THE PROVISIONS OF THE LOANS’ 

AFFORDABILITY RESTRICTIONS. 

 

WHEREAS, in 2009 the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Suisun City began 

providing Foreclosure First Time Homebuyer loans to eliminate blight, enhance property 

values, and provide affordable home ownership opportunities to low- and moderate-income 

households within the existing neighborhoods of the Suisun City; and 

 

WHEREAS, a provision of the loan program was an Affordability Restriction.  Under 

the affordability restriction, the homeowner is limited to a restricted resale price instead of 

being allowed to sell at market value.  The restriction exists to ensure that these homes remain 

affordable to other/future first-time homebuyers for a period of 45 years. 

 

WHEREAS, current market value of homes in Suisun City have experienced 

substantial increases value; and 

 

WHEREAS, after careful consideration of the impact of the Affordability Restriction 

on participant households, it has been determined that holding the program participants to the 

restricted resale price substantially diminishes the equity investment of each homeowner. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE SUISUN CITY COUNCIL ACTING AS THE 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF 

SUISUN CITY DOES HEREBY APPROVE the removal of the Affordability Restriction 

from each property deed; and  

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is authorized to execute 

all documents necessary to Release the Affordability Restrictions on all impacted properties. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council serving as the 

Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Suisun City duly held on 

Tuesday, the 3rd of May 2022, by the following vote: 

AYES: Boardmembers:         

NOES: Boardmembers:    

ABSENT: Boardmembers:    

ABSTAIN: Boardmembers:    

  

 WITNESS my hand and seal of the City of Suisun City this 3rd of May 2022. 

 

   

 Anita Skinner 

 City Clerk 

 

Item 8 
Attachment 1

59



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

60



 

DEPARTMENTS: AREA CODE (707)  

ADMINISTRATION 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 0  ◼  PLANNING 4 2 1 - 7 3 3 5  ◼  BUILDING 4 2 1 - 7 3 1 0  ◼  FINANCE 4 2 1 - 7 3 2 0  

FIRE 4 2 5 - 9 1 3 3  ◼  RECREATION & COMMUNITY SERVICES 4 2 1 - 7 2 0 0  ◼  POLICE 4 2 1 - 7 3 7 3  ◼  PUBLIC WORKS 4 2 1 - 7 3 4 0  

SUCCESSOR AGENCY 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 9  FAX 4 2 1 - 7 3 6 6  

 

CITY COUNCIL 

Lori Wilson, Mayor 

Alma Hernandez, Mayor Pro-Tem 

Jane Day 

Michael J. Hudson 

Wanda Williams 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

First and Third Tuesday 

Every Month 
, 

 

 

 
MINUTES 

 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL ACTING AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY, 

AND HOUSING AUTHORITY 

TUESDAY, MARCH 29, 2022 

6:30 P.M. 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS -- 701 CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD -- SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA 

 

NOTICE 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953, subdivision (b), and in accordance with the provisions of SB 361 

(2021), the following Council/Successor Agency/Housing Authority meeting includes teleconference participation 

by: Council/Board Members Jane Day, Michael Hudson, Wanda Williams, Mayor Pro Tem Alma Hernandez, and 

Mayor/Chair Lori Wilson. Teleconference locations are on file at City Hall, 701 Civic Center Blvd., Suisun City, CA 

94585. 
 

PER CITY POLICY, MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ARE REQUIRED TO WEAR FACE MASKS WHILE IN CITY 

FACILITIES IF NOT FULLY VACCINATED.  IF YOU DO NOT HAVE A FACE MASK, ONE WILL BE PROVIDED 

FOR YOU.  

 

THE CITY COUNCIL HAS RESUMED IN-PERSON MEETINGS IN ADDITION TO ZOOM. A LIMITED NUMBER 

OF SEATS ARE AVAILABLE, TO RESERVE A SEAT PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY CLERK AT clerk@suisun.com 

OR 707 421-7302.   

ZOOM MEETING INFORMATION:  

WEBSITE: https://zoom.us/join 

MEETING ID:   891 0359 7103 
CALL IN PHONE NUMBER: (707) 438-1720 

 

REMOTE PUBLIC COMMENT IS AVAILABLE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

BY EMAILING CLERK@SUISUN.COM (PRIOR TO 6 PM) OR  

VIA WEBSITE OR PHONE APPLICATION, ZOOM 

 

(If attending the meeting via phone press *9 to raise your hand and *6 to unmute/mute for public comment.) 
 

(Next Ord. No. – 791) 

 (Next City Council Res. No. 2022 – 42) 

Next Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency Res. No. SA2022 - 01) 

 (Next Housing Authority Res. No. HA2022 – 01) 

Item 9

61

mailto:clerk@suisun.com
https://zoom.us/join
mailto:CLERK@SUISUN.COM


March 29, 2022 City Council / Successor Agency / Housing Authority Page 2 

 

 

 

ROLL CALL 

Mayor Wilson announced the Closed Session ended at 6:55pm.  Item #3 on the Closed Session 

Agenda was not completed and would be discussed via a Zoom meeting on Thursday, March 31st 

at 5pm for that item only. 

 

Mayor Wilson called the meeting to order at 7:03pm with the following Council Members 

present: 

PRESENT:  Day, Hernandez, Hudson, Williams, Wilson 

ABSENT:  None 

Pledge of Allegiance was led by Council Member Williams. 

Invocation was led by City Manager Greg Folsom. 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION  None 
(Any items on this agenda that might be a conflict of interest to any Councilmembers / Boardmembers should be 

identified at this time.) 

REPORTS:  (Informational items only) 

1. City Manager/Executive Director/Staff 

• Public Works Maintenance Schedule moving forward will be as follows: 

o First week of each month – Victorian Harbor & Blossom area 

o Second week of each month – Heritage area plus Heritage CFD’s 

o Third week of each month – Petersen & Montebello 

o Fourth week of each month – Lawler Ranch 

• Railroad Avenue work completed and fully striped. 

• New Hire starting Monday, April 4th for the Admin Assistant Position funded through 

ARPA 

• Attended ribbon cutting ceremony at Solano County College along with Mayor Wilson 

for their Library and Learning Resource Center 

• Agenda Item #7 is on the Consent Calendar because the mission of the committee 

would be over.  Staff will be coming back with a discussion and direction item in 

regards of creating a different committee for overall city landscaping issues with a 

scope and membership not necessarily tied to LLD’s. 

• Reminder your Forms 700 are due April 1st. 

PRESENTATION/APPOINTMENTS 
(Presentations, Awards, Proclamations, Appointments). 

Proclamations Not Presented 

2. Proclamation Proclaiming the Month of March 2022 as Women’s History Month and 

Recognizing Suisun City Women Leaders - (Wilson: lwilson@suisun.com)      

Mayor Wilson read the proclamation and presented copies to Council Member Williams, Vice 

Mayor Hernandez, City Attorney Elena Gerli and City Clerk Anita Skinner who were in 

attendance. 

Item 9

62

mailto:lwilson@suisun.com
file:///C:/AVCA%20Backup/2022-03-29/City%20Council_2022-03-29_06-30-44%20PM/Proclamation%20-%20Womens%20History%20Month%202022_LDW%20f%20p.pdf
file:///C:/AVCA%20Backup/2022-03-29/City%20Council_2022-03-29_06-30-44%20PM/Proclamation%20-%20Womens%20History%20Month%202022_LDW%20f%20p.pdf


March 29, 2022 City Council / Successor Agency / Housing Authority Page 3 

 

 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

George Guynn commented on the male representation on Council is not equal to the representation 

of the male population of Suisun City.  Should make sure everyone geta chance for appointment 

and elected offices. 

Back to #1 City Managers report 

Donna LeBlanc asked Mr. Folsom to repeat the maintenance schedule and asked what is a Form 

700.  She congratulated all the women who serve in their capacity to the City of Suisun City. 

 

Mayoral Appointments of Council Boards, Commissions and Committees 

3. Appointment to Ad hoc Committees – (Wilson:  lwilson@suisun.com). 

Deferred to next meeting. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Steve Olry commented that all appointments should be deferred and let the next acting mayor 

make them. 

George Guynn commented he has been trying to get on the Environmental Committee since 

March of last year and was told he couldn’t be on more than one committee but has not seen 

anything to that in writing.  He hopes that situation changes with a better regime. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
Consent calendar items requiring little or no discussion may be acted upon with one motion. 

City Council 

4. Council Consideration and possible action to adopt Resolution No. 2022-42:  A Resolution of 

the City Council of the City of Suisun City proclaiming a local emergency persists and 

authorizing the use of remote teleconference meeting procedures by the City’s legislative 

bodies, as authorized by government code section 54953(e) et seq., through April 27, 2022 – 

(Folsom: gfolsom@suisun.com). 

5. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-43:  Authorizing the City Manager to Enter into a 

Contract on the City’s Behalf with Melton Design Group for the Design Plan and Project 

Coordination of Prosperity Garden Park in the amount of $121,750 and Authorizing the City 

Manager to Approve Change Orders up to 10% of the Original Contract Amount– (Lofthus: 

klofthus@suisun.com). 

6. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-44: Authorizing the Director of Recreation, Parks, and 

Marina Department (RPM) To Accept Funds from Kaiser Permanente’s Community Relations 

Sponsorship Program in the amount of $5,000– (Lofthus:  klofthus@suisun.com). 

7. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-45:  Dissolving and Disbanding the Lighting & 

Landscaping District Community Advisory Committee – (Vue: nvue@suisun.com). 

8. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-46:  Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a 

Contract with HCI Systems, Inc. to Replace the Fire Sprinkler Main Lines for City Hall and 

Police Department in the Amount of $96,307.40 which includes up to 10% for Contingencies 

– (Vue: nvue@suisun.com). 

Item 9

63

mailto:lwilson@suisun.com
mailto:gfolsom@suisun.com
mailto:klofthus@suisun.com
mailto:klofthus@suisun.com
mailto:nvue@suisun.com
mailto:nvue@suisun.com


March 29, 2022 City Council / Successor Agency / Housing Authority Page 4 

 

 

 

Joint City Council / Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency / Housing Authority 

9. Council/Agency/Authority Approval of the Minutes of the Regular and/or Special Meetings of 

the Suisun City Council, Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency, and Housing 

Authority held on February 15, 2022, March 1, 2022 and March 15, 2022 - (Skinner: 

askinner@suisun.com). 

Council Member Williams pulled Item #7. 

Clerk Skinner commented on Item #9 minutes for March 15 had a typo.  It read Agenda instead of 

Minutes and has been corrected for the official minute book. 

Council Member Hudson moved to approved Consent Calendar Items #4, 5, 6, 8, 9 with the 

correction to Item #9 minutes and seconded by Council Member Day. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

George Guynn commented on Item #4 that it affects the Brown Act.  The quicker we can get 

through COVID and get back to normal the better we will be. 

Donna LeBlanc commented on Item #5 that the staff report indicates there will be meetings 

regarding the design process and wanted to know how the public would be notified of those 

meetings.  

Motion passed by the following vote: 

 

AYES:  Day, Hernandez, Hudson, Williams, Wilson 

NOES:  None 

ABSENT:  None 

ITEM #7 

Council Member Williams does not support dismantling the committee.  Not in the best interest 

for the community.  There to give comments and suggestions to staff, then Council.  Expand 

their scope. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Patricia Matteson commented that the committee should not be dismantled but expand a new 

scope of work for the committee. 

Mike Zeiss urged the Council to vote no and to revise scope of work for the committee. 

Donna LeBlanc commented she is disappointed that this is even on the agenda. 

Motion by Council Member Day to approve Item #7 and seconded by Council Member 

Hudson. 

Continued discussion by Council.  Council took a 5-minute recess. 

Council Member Williams made an alternate motion to not disband but to expand their 

scope and incorporate a component to also look at the beautification aspect.  Seconded by 

Council Member Hernandez.  Motion failed by the following vote: 

AYES:  Williams, Hernandez 

NOES:  Day, Hudson, Wilson 

ABSENT:  None 

 

Item 9

64

mailto:askinner@suisun.com


March 29, 2022 City Council / Successor Agency / Housing Authority Page 5 

 

 

 

Original motion by Council Member Day and seconded by Council Member Hudson 

AYES:  Day, Hernandez, Hudson, Wilson 

NOES:  Williams 

ABSENT:  None 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
(Request by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this agenda per 

California Government Code §54954.3. Comments are limited to no more than 3 minutes unless allowable by the 

Mayor/Chair. Speaker cards are available on the table near the entry of the meeting room and should be given to the 

City Clerk. By law, no prolonged discussion or action may be taken on any item raised during the public comment 

period, although informational answers to questions may be given and matters may be referred for placement on a 

future agenda.) 

 

George (last name not given) 

Thanked the Mayor for efforts to develop vacant properties in Old Town Suisun City but it seems 

development has taken priority over quality-of-life for residents in Old Town.  Mayor’s refusal to 

see that streets are in dire need of repair which Measure S was supposed to take care of.  Old Town 

has become surrounded by homeless camps which have caused a multitude off fires.  

Environmental issues are that are being created by these camps are of little concern.  Maybe it’s 

time for a new mayor who respects the citizens of Suisun City and not pre-occupied with their 

political future.  Hope those on the Council who aspire to run for future office differentiate 

themselves from Mayor Wilson’s priorities and take us in a different direction.  

 

Steve Olry 

Twin mattress under the bridge on Pintail and witnessed a pick-up truck run a red light on 

Highway 12 at 70mph.  It is obvious it is election time.  Want to talk about outgoing regime; talk 

about those that want to run for Council; time for a new direction; feel those who want to be 

mayor need to be qualified critical thinkers; look forward to budget coming up; like to see a new 

auditor come in and really state the condition of the City with all the Measure S money gone; see 

roads get fixed.  Public Works need to be more funded; legal fees need to be reduced.  Need new 

direction and hopes it starts at the next meeting. 

 

George Guynn  

Have had a bunch of closed session meetings and Mayor, you were pushing things the city 

attorney didn’t agree with; to many cases where city paid out claims; city doesn’t have money to 

fix the roads which Measure S was to do; big mistake not getting a new auditor,  Hope we get 

better results next time around. 

 

Donna LeBlanc 

Missed last meeting only read cancellation notice and not the special meeting time of 7pm.  

Went on line to watch meeting but it was completely blurred; PC meeting had no audio; few 

meetings ago signed off on new roofing fire dept and asked then if it had been tested and told 

“yes”.  Went to Fire Department last week when it was raining and roof was leaking; need to 

make sure in the future that warranties are good, test products that are put in and make sure they 

do what they are supposed to do. 

Item 9

65



March 29, 2022 City Council / Successor Agency / Housing Authority Page 6 

 

 

 

 

Katrina Garcia 

Thank you for honoring women of the city.  There was a great pool of community that came 

together to clean up Railroad Avenue and recommended a 1.5’ drainage ditch be put in so that 

people can’t drive up onto property to dump. 

PUBLIC HEARING   

City Council 

10. PUBLIC HEARING: Element 7 Commercial Cannabis Business Permit, Cannabis Business Zone, 

and Development Agreement - (Bermudez: jbermudez@suisun.com). 

a. Council adoption of Resolution No. 2022-47: Approving a Commercial Cannabis Business 

Permit for Element 7, Located at 300 Railroad Avenue. 

 

b.  Council Introduce and Waive Reading of Ordinance No. 791: An Ordinance of the City 

Council of the City of Suisun City, California Amending the Suisun City Zoning Map to 

Establish a Cannabis Business Zone for Assessor’s Parcel Number: 0037-160-100. 

 

c. Council Introduce and Waive Reading of Ordinance No. 792: An Ordinance of the City 

Council of the City of Suisun City, California Approving a Development Agreement with 

Element 7, Located at 300 Railroad Avenue.  

 

Greg Folsom introduced Senior Planner John Kearns who presented staff report and power point 

presentation. 

Mayor Wilson opened Public Hearing. 

George Guynn businesses have a right to operate.  A bit of a gamble; already have one 

dispensary in operation.  Do you want Suisun to be known as a place that encourages marijuana? 

Steve Olry asked does the traffic study include a bus stop to serve our youth? Something to 

consider. 

Donna LeBlanc stated she is in favor of this project.  Would it be fair to ask for a traffic 

reassessment perhaps 6-12 months after the apartments are built to determine if turn lanes are 

working; when landscaping designs come through will they come forward to Council or 

Planning Commission only.  She highlighted several items that were discussed at the community 

ZOOM meeting on this development that the public may not have been able to attend.  

Michelle Chavez supports the idea of “keep clear” area at the business location; will there be 

parking for emergency vehicles; consideration of private property across the street from the 

business site which has been in litigation for some time; there is continued on going clean-up and 

illegal dumping on that property and how will the city handle that so as to not reflect poorly on 

surrounding businesses. 

Robert Randall commented this business is a good thing; thinks city is heading in a good 

direction; and feels this dispensary will help those of us in chronic pain.  

There being no further comments Mayor Wilson closed the Public Hearing. 

Jane Day left meeting at an unknown time.   

Item 9

66

mailto:jbermudez@suisun.com


March 29, 2022 City Council / Successor Agency / Housing Authority Page 7 

 

 

 

Council adoption of Resolution No. 2022-47: Approving a Commercial Cannabis Business 

Permit for Element 7, Located at 300 Railroad Avenue. 

 

Motion by Vice Mayor Hernandez to adopt Resolution and seconded by Council Member 

Williams.  Motion passed by the following vote: 

 

AYES:  Hernandez, Hudson, Williams, Hudson 

NOES:  None 

ABSENT:  Day 

 

Council Introduce and Waive Reading of Ordinance No. 791: An Ordinance of the City 

Council of the City of Suisun City, California Amending the Suisun City Zoning Map to 

Establish a Cannabis Business Zone for Assessor’s Parcel Number: 0037-160-100. 

 

Motion by Council Member Williams to introduce Ordinance No. 791 and seconded by Vice 

Mayor Hernandez.  Motion passed by the following vote: 

 

AYES:  Hernandez, Hudson, Williams, Wilson 

NOES:  None 

ABSENT:  Day 

 

Council Introduce and Waive Reading of Ordinance No. 792: An Ordinance of the City 

Council of the City of Suisun City, California Approving a Development Agreement with 

Element 7, Located at 300 Railroad Avenue with the addition of “keep clear” to the entrance. 

 

Motion by Vice Mayor Hernandez to introduce Ordinance No. 792 and seconded by Council 

Member Williams.  Motion passed by the following vote: 

 

AYES:  Hernandez, Hudson, Williams, Wilson 

NOES:  None 

ABSENT:  Day  

 

GENERAL BUSINESS   

City Council 

11. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-48:   Accept the Community Based Transportation 

Plan survey findings, choose a microtransit option, and notify Rio Vista if City decides to partner 

on microtransit and participate in their RFP – (Folsom: gfolsom@suisun.com). 

 

Staff report and presentation was given by the following principals: 

 

Richard Weiner, Principal- Nelson Nygaard 

Debbie McQuilkin, Transit Mobility Coordinator 

Jewel DeGuzman, Nelson Nygaard 

Ian Barnes, Fehr & Peers 

Ron Grassi, Director of Programs-STA 

Brandon Thomson, Transit Mobility Coordinator, STA 

Daryl Halls, STA 

 

Item 9

67

mailto:gfolsom@suisun.com


March 29, 2022 City Council / Successor Agency / Housing Authority Page 8 

 

 

 

Public Comments 

Donna LeBlanc asked how will the passengers pay; cash or pre-paid cards? 

 

Katrina Garcia asked for clarification on the cell phone data; does Uber have age restrictions. 

 

Motion by Vice Mayor Hernandez to adopt Resolution and seconded by Council 

Member Hudson.  Motion passed by the following vote: 

 

AYES:  Hernandez, Hudson, Williams, Wilson 

NOES:  None 

ABSENT:  Day 

 

Mayor Wilson stated that being after hours no further business could be heard. 

REPORTS:  (Informational items only) 

12. Council Updates 

a. Council/Boardmembers 

b. Mayor 

13. Non-Discussion Items 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business the meeting was adjourned at 10:35pm. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Anita Skinner, City Clerk 

Item 9

68



PREPARED AND APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 
 

MEETING DATE:  May 3, 2022 
 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:  Council Discussion and Direction: MCE 
 

FISCAL IMPACT:  None at this time 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN IMPACT:  Provide Good Governance 
  

BACKGROUND:  Community Choice Aggregation (CCA) is an alternative to the Investor 

Owned Utility (IOU) energy supply system (e.g. PG&E) in which local entities in the United States 

aggregate the buying power of individual customers within a defined jurisdiction in order to secure 

alternative energy supply contracts. CCAs are local, not-for-profit, public agencies that take on the 

decision-making role about sources of energy for electricity generation. The CCA chooses the 

power generation source on behalf of the consumers. By aggregating purchasing power, they are 

able to create large contracts with generators, something individual buyers may be unable to do. 

The main goals of CCAs have been to either lower costs for consumers or to allow consumers 

greater control of their energy mix, mainly by offering "greener" generation portfolios than local 

utilities. 
 

STAFF REPORT:  MCE, formerly Marin Clean Energy, is a public, not-for-profit, alternative 

energy provider under the CCA program that provides the choice of having 60% or 100% of their 

electricity supplied from clean, renewable sources at stable and competitive rates.  MCE provides 

electricity service and innovative programs to more than 540,000 customer accounts and more 

than one million residents and businesses in 37 member communities across four Bay Area 

counties: Contra Costa, Marin, Napa, and Solano. MCE is governed by a local board of elected 

officials that represent the member communities they serve. Solano County, Vallejo, Benicia, and 

Fairfield have already joined MCE and are represented on the board. Fairfield residents are 

expected to save 5% on their total electricity bill with MCE compared to PG&E.  A joint rate 

comparison by PG&E is attached (Attachment 1). 

 

With the CCA program, MCE would be the default provider of energy and the power would still 

be transmitted by PG&E and the bill would come from PG&E.  The customer would have to “opt 

out” of using MCE if they preferred to have power sourced from PG&E.  Using MCE would have 

no impact on either rolling black outs, which are controlled by the California Independent System 

Operators (ISO), or Public Safety Power Shutoffs (PSPS) events, which are controlled by PG&E.   

Representatives from MCE will be providing the presentation (Attachment 2) and will be available 

to answer questions. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended Council provide direction on whether to 

come back for a decision on joining a CCA program with MCE. 
 

ATTACHMENTS:   

1. Joint Rate Comparison by PG&E 

2. Power Point Presentation 

Item 10

69

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Energy_mix


 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

70



  

 
 
 
 
 

  
 

 
 

     
               

    
               

            
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

   

  

  

   

  

  

   

  

  

   

  

  

   

   

 

 
 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 
 

 

  

PG&E – MCE 
Joint Rate Comparisons 

As a part of our mutual commitment to support your energy choice, Marin Clean Energy (MCE) and PG&E 
have partnered to create a comparison of our typical electric rates, average monthly charges and generation 
portfolio contents. Below you will find a representative comparison of our rates, average monthly bills and 
power generation portfolio content based on customer class. To find your specific electric rate, please scroll 
down to your rate plan to view the rate and bill comparisons. 

Residential 

• Tiered Rate Plan E-1 

• Tiered Rate Plan E-1L (CARE) 

• E-6 

• E-6L 

• Time-of-Use (Peak Pricing 4-9 p.m. Weekdays) 

o E-TOUB 

o E-TOUBL 

• Time-of-Use (Peak Pricing 4-9 p.m. Everyday) 

o E-TOUC 

o E-TOUCL 

• Time-of-Use (Peak Pricing 4-9 p.m. Everyday) 

o E-TOUD 

o E-TOUDL 

• Electric Vehicle Rate PlanEV2-A 

• Electric Vehicle Rate PlanEV2-AL 

Small and Medium Business 

• A-1 

• A-10S 

• A-1X 

• B-1 

• B-6 

• B-10S 

Large Commercial and Industrial • B-19SV 

1 

Item 10 
Attachment 1

71



  

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 
   

  

Agriculture 

• AG-1A 

• AG-1B 

• AG-4A 

• AG-4B 

• AG-5A 

• AG-5B 

• AG-A1 

• AG-A2 

• AG-B 

• AG-C 

Streetlight and Outdoor Lighting • LS-3 

• TC-1 

1 

Item 10 
Attachment 1

72



 

 
                

 

 

 
  

   

 

 

  
    

    
     

     
 

    
 

 

      
   

    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

 
 

  

Definitions 
Generation Rate is the cost of creating electricity to power your home or business. The generation rate 

varies based on your energy provider and the resources included in your energy provider’s generation 

supply. 

PG&E Delivery Rate is a charge assessed by PG&E to deliver electricity to your home or business. The 

PG&E delivery rate depends on your electricity usage, but is charged equally to both PCE and PG&E 

customers. 

PG&E PCIA/FF represents the Power Charge Indifference Adjustment (PCIA) and the Franchise Fee surcharge 
(FF). The PCIA is a charge to ensure that both PG&E’s customers and those who have left PG&E service to 
purchase electricity from other providers pay the above market costs for generation resources that were procured 
by PG&E on their behalf. “Above market” refers to expenditures for electric generation resources that cannot be 
fully recovered through sales of these resources at the current market price. PG&E acts as a collection agent for 
the FF surcharged, which is levied by the California Public Utilities Commission on behalf of cities and counties in 
PG&E’s service territory for all customers. The costs for resources included in the PCIA and FF surcharges are 
included in the generation rate for PG&E bundled service customers. 

Where Do I Find My Electric Rate Schedule? 
Need some help finding your electric rate? Go to the “Electric Delivery Charges” section of your energy 

statement - you’ll find your electric rate in the upper left. 

Look here to identify your electric 
rate schedule. Once you have 
that, you can find your rate 
comparison below. 

Item 10 
Attachment 1

73



  

 
 
 
 
 

         
 

      
   

    
    

       
       

       
        

                        
   

  
 

  
 

      
    

    
    

              
              

              
               

                   
  

  
 

  
 

      
    

    
    

          
          

          
           

            
  

  

 

  
 

      
    

    
    

          
          

          
           

                         
  

  
 

 

        
 
 

-

-

-

-

Residential * 

E-1* 

Residential: E 1 PG&E MCE Light Green 
(61% Renewable) 

MCE Deep Green 
(100% Renewable) 

Generation Rate ($/kWh) $0.12433 $0.10700 $0.11700 
PG&E Delivery Rate ($/kWh) $0.19990 $0.19990 $0.19990 
PG&E PCIA/FF ($/kWh) $0.02653 $0.02064 $0.02064 
Total Electricity Cost ($/kWh) $0.35076 $0.32754 $0.33754 
Average Monthly Bill ($) $171.59 $160.24 $165.13 

Monthly usage: 489 kWh 

Rates are current as of March 1, 2022 

E-1 CARE* 

Residential: E 1L PG&E MCE Light Green
(61% Renewable) 

MCE Deep Green
(100% Renewable) 

Generation Rate ($/kWh) $0.12433 $0.10700 $0.11700 
PG&E Delivery Rate ($/kWh) $0.07140 $0.07140 $0.07140 
PG&E PCIA/FF ($/kWh) $0.02653 $0.02064 $0.02064 
Total Electricity Cost ($/kWh) $0.22226 $0.19904 $0.20904 
Average Monthly Bill ($) $96.75 $86.64 $91.00 

Monthly usage: 435 kWh 

Rates are current as of March 1, 2022 

E-6* 

Residential: E 6 PG&E MCE Light Green 
(61% Renewable) 

MCE Deep Green 
(100% Renewable) 

Generation Rate ($/kWh) $0.12018 $0.10070 $0.11070 
PG&E Delivery Rate ($/kWh) $0.19572 $0.19572 $0.19572 
PG&E PCIA/FF ($/kWh) $0.02653 $0.02064 $0.02064 
Total Electricity Cost ($/kWh) $0.34243 $0.31706 $0.32706 
Average Monthly Bill ($) $195.56 $181.07 $186.78 

Monthly usage:571 kWh 

Rates are current as of March 1, 2022 

E-6 CARE* 

Residential: E 6L PG&E MCE Light Green 
(61% Renewable) 

MCE Deep Green 
(100% Renewable) 

Generation Rate ($/kWh) $0.11957 $0.10017 $0.11017 
PG&E Delivery Rate ($/kWh) $0.07056 $0.07056 $0.07056 
PG&E PCIA/FF ($/kWh) $0.02653 $0.02064 $0.02064 
Total Electricity Cost ($/kWh) $0.21666 $0.19137 $0.20137 
Average Monthly Bill ($) $115.10 $101.66 $106.98 

Monthly usage:531 kWh 

Rates are current as of March 1, 2022 

4 

Item 10 
Attachment 1

74



  

         
 

       
    

    
    

         
         

         
          

                       
  

   

 
 

         
 

        
     

    
    

          
          

          
           

                            
   

   

 

         
 

    
  

  
  

    
    

    
     

         
   

   

 

  
 

     
   

    
    

    
    

    
     

    
   

   

 
 

        
 
 
       

-

-

-

-

E-TOU B* 

Residential: E TOU B PG&E MCE Light Green
(61% Renewable) 

MCE Deep Green
(100% Renewable) 

Generation Rate ($/kWh) $0.11840 $0.10191 $0.11191 
PG&E Delivery Rate ($/kWh) $0.19943 $0.19943 $0.19943 
PG&E PCIA/FF ($/kWh) $0.02653 $0.02064 $0.02064 
Total Electricity Cost ($/kWh) $0.34436 $0.32198 $0.33198 
Average Monthly Bill ($) $514.45 $481.02 $495.96 

Monthly usage: 1,494 kWh 
Rates are current as of March 1, 2022 

E-TOU B CARE* 

Residential: E TOU BL PG&E MCE Light Green
(61% Renewable) 

MCE Deep Green
(100% Renewable) 

Generation Rate ($/kWh) $0.11926 $0.10267 $0.11267 
PG&E Delivery Rate ($/kWh) $0.07877 $0.07877 $0.07877 
PG&E PCIA/FF ($/kWh) $0.02653 $0.02064 $0.02064 
Total Electricity Cost ($/kWh) $0.22456 $0.20208 $0.21208 
Average Monthly Bill ($) $172.00 $154.78 $162.44 

Monthly usage: 766 kWh 
Rates are current as of March 1, 2022 

EV-2A* 

Residential: EV 2A PG&E MCE Light Green 
(61% Renewable) 

MCE Deep Green 
(100% Renewable) 

Generation Rate ($/kWh) $0.11788 $0.10089 $0.11089 
PG&E Delivery Rate ($/kWh) $0.17917 $0.17917 $0.17917 
PG&E PCIA/FF ($/kWh) $0.02653 $0.02064 $0.02064 
Total Electricity Cost ($/kWh) $0.32358 $0.30070 $0.31070 
Average Monthly Bill ($) $285.98 $265.76 $274.60 

Monthly usage: 884 kWh 

Rates are current as of March 1, 2022 

EV-2A CARE* 

Residential: EV 2AL PG&E MCE Light Green 
(61% Renewable) 

MCE Deep Green 
(100% Renewable) 

Generation Rate ($/kWh) $0.11790 $0.10092 $0.11092 
PG&E Delivery Rate ($/kWh) $0.06729 $0.06729 $0.06729 
PG&E PCIA/FF ($/kWh) $0.02653 $0.02064 $0.02064 
Total Electricity Cost ($/kWh) $0.21172 $0.18885 $0.19885 
Average Monthly Bill ($) $141.37 $126.10 $132.77 

Monthly usage: 668 kWh 

Rates are current as of March 1, 2022 

5 

Item 10 
Attachment 1

75



  

          
 

       
    

    
    

    
    

    
     

    
   

   

 

          
 

       
    

    
    

    
    

    
     

    
  

   

 

         
 

      
    

    
    

    
    

    
     

    
   

  

 

         
 

      
    

    
    

    
    

    
     

    
   

  

 

 

 

 
                

   
 

-

-

-

-

E-TOU C*

Residential: E TOU C PG&E MCE Light Green 
(61% Renewable) 

MCE Deep Green 
(100% Renewable) 

Generation Rate ($/kWh) $0.12154 $0.10378 $0.11378 
PG&E Delivery Rate ($/kWh) $0.20089 $0.20089 $0.20089 
PG&E PCIA/FF ($/kWh) $0.02653 $0.02064 $0.02064 
Total Electricity Cost ($/kWh) $0.34896 $0.32531 $0.33531 
Average Monthly Bill ($) $167.79 $156.42 $161.23 

Monthly usage: 481 kWh 

Rates are current as of March 1, 2022 

E-TOU C CARE*

Residential: E TOU CL PG&E MCE Light Green 
(61% Renewable) 

MCE Deep Green 
(100% Renewable) 

Generation Rate ($/kWh) $0.12150 $0.10374 $0.11374 
PG&E Delivery Rate ($/kWh) $0.07223 $0.07223 $0.07223 
PG&E PCIA/FF ($/kWh) $0.02653 $0.02064 $0.02064 
Total Electricity Cost ($/kWh) $0.22026 $0.19661 $0.20661 
Average Monthly Bill ($) $91.40 $81.59 $85.74 

Monthly usage: 415 kWh 

Rates are current as of March 1, 2022 

E-TOU D*

Residential: E TOU D PG&E MCE Light Green 
(61% Renewable) 

MCE Deep Green 
(100% Renewable) 

Generation Rate ($/kWh) $0.12281 $0.10552 $0.11552 
PG&E Delivery Rate ($/kWh) $0.19923 $0.19923 $0.19923 
PG&E PCIA/FF ($/kWh) $0.02653 $0.02064 $0.02064 
Total Electricity Cost ($/kWh) $0.34857 $0.32539 $0.33539 
Average Monthly Bill ($) $415.52 $387.89 $399.81 

Monthly usage: 1,192 kWh 

Rates are current as of March 1, 2022 

E-TOU D CARE*

Residential: E TOU DL PG&E MCE Light Green 
(61% Renewable) 

MCE Deep Green 
(100% Renewable) 

Generation Rate ($/kWh) $0.12332 $0.10597 $0.11597 
PG&E Delivery Rate ($/kWh) $0.07753 $0.07753 $0.07753 
PG&E PCIA/FF ($/kWh) $0.02653 $0.02064 $0.02064 
Total Electricity Cost ($/kWh) $0.22738 $0.20414 $0.21414 
Average Monthly Bill ($) $181.87 $163.28 $171.28 

Monthly usage: 800 kWh 

Rates are current as of March 1, 2022 

* Please note this rate comparison excludes the California Climate Credit from the State of California which is 
issued twice a year to residential customers. For more information visit www.energyupgradeCA.org/credit.

6 

Item 10 
Attachment 1

76



  

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
  

 
     

    
    
    

    
    

    
     

    
   

   

 

   
  

 
     

    
    
    

    
    

     
     

     
     

   
 

         
  

 
     

    
    
    

    
    

     
     

    
  

   
 

         
 

 
     

    
    
    

    
    

    
     

                      
  

   

 

   
       

-

-

- -

-

Small and Medium Business ** 

A-1** 
Commercial/Industrial: 
A 1 

PG&E MCE Light Green
(61% Renewable) 

MCE Deep Green
(100% Renewable) 

Generation Rate ($/kWh) $0.11866 $0.10358 $0.11358 
PG&E Delivery Rate ($/kWh) $0.19110 $0.19110 $0.19110 
PG&E PCIA/FF ($/kWh) $0.02554 $0.01987 $0.01987 
Total Electricity Cost ($/kWh) $0.33530 $0.31455 $0.32455 
Average Monthly Bill ($) $134.27 $125.96 $129.97 

Monthly usage: 400 kWh 

Rates are current as of March 1, 2022 

A-10S Non Time-of-Use** 
Commercial/Industrial: 
A 10S 

PG&E MCE Light Green 
(61% Renewable) 

MCE Deep Green 
(100% Renewable) 

Generation Rate ($/kWh) $0.12888 $0.11007 $0.12007 
PG&E Delivery Rate ($/kWh) $0.15559 $0.15559 $0.15559 
PG&E PCIA/FF ($/kWh) $0.02746 $0.02137 $0.02137 
Total Electricity Cost ($/kWh) $0.31193 $0.28703 $0.29703 
Average Monthly Bill ($) $2,212.22 $2,035.63 $2,106.55 

Monthly usage: 7,092 kWh, monthly demand 27 kW 

Rates are current as of March 1, 2022 

A-1X TOU** 
Commercial/Industrial: 
A 1 TOU (A 1X) 

PG&E MCE Light Green
(61% Renewable) 

MCE Deep Green
(100% Renewable) 

Generation Rate ($/kWh) $0.11972 $0.10456 $0.11456 
PG&E Delivery Rate ($/kWh) $0.17268 $0.17268 $0.17268 
PG&E PCIA/FF ($/kWh) $0.02554 $0.01987 $0.01987 
Total Electricity Cost ($/kWh) $0.31794 $0.29711 $0.30711 
Average Monthly Bill ($) $582.58 $544.42 $562.74 

Monthly usage: 1,832 kWh 
Rates are current as of March 1, 2022 

B-1 Time of Use** 
Commercial/Industrial: 
B 1 

PG&E MCE Light Green
(61% Renewable) 

MCE Deep Green
(100% Renewable) 

Generation Rate ($/kWh) $0.12077 $0.10488 $0.11488 
PG&E Delivery Rate ($/kWh) $0.17954 $0.17954 $0.17954 
PG&E PCIA/FF ($/kWh) $0.02554 $0.01987 $0.01987 
Total Electricity Cost ($/kWh) $0.32585 $0.30429 $0.31429 
Average Monthly Bill ($) $399.54 $373.10 $385.36 

Monthly usage: 1,226 kWh 

Rates are current as of March 1, 2022 

7 

Item 10 
Attachment 1

77



  

 
         
         

 
 

     
    

    
    

    
    

    
     

      
   

   

 

          
 

 
     

    
    
    

    
    

    
     

      
      

   

 

              
 

-

-

B-6 Time of Use** 
Commercial/Industrial: 
B 6 

PG&E MCE Light Green 
(61% Renewable) 

MCE Deep Green 
(100% Renewable) 

Generation Rate ($/kWh) $0.11415 $0.10161 $0.11161 
PG&E Delivery Rate ($/kWh) $0.17322 $0.17322 $0.17322 
PG&E PCIA/FF ($/kWh) $0.02554 $0.01987 $0.01987 
Total Electricity Cost ($/kWh) $0.31291 $0.29470 $0.30470 
Average Monthly Bill ($) $417.18 $392.90 $406.23 

Monthly usage: 1,333 kWh 

Rates are current as of March 1, 2022 

B-10S Time of Use** 
Commercial/Industrial: 
B 10S 

PG&E MCE Light Green
(61% Renewable) 

MCE Deep Green
(100% Renewable) 

Generation Rate ($/kWh) $0.12723 $0.10724 $0.11724 
PG&E Delivery Rate ($/kWh) $0.14170 $0.14170 $0.14170 
PG&E PCIA/FF ($/kWh) $0.02746 $0.02137 $0.02137 
Total Electricity Cost ($/kWh) $0.29639 $0.27031 $0.28031 
Average Monthly Bill ($) $5,768.62 $5,261.03 $5,455.66 

Monthly usage: 19,463 kWh, monthly demand: 77 kW 

Rates are current as of March 1, 2022 

** Please note this rate comparison excludes volumetric California Climate Credits issued to eligible 
business customers that impact PG&E Delivery Rates only. For more information visit 
www.energyupgradeCA.org/credit. 

8 

Item 10 
Attachment 1

78

http://www.energyupgradeca.org/credit


  

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
        
         

 
 

     
    

    
    

    
    

    
     

    
      

  

 

         
        

Large Commercial and

Large Commercial and

-

Large Commercial and Industrial 

B-19 SV 
Commercial/Industrial: 
B 19 SV 

PG&E MCE Light Green
(61% Renewable) 

MCE Deep Green
(100% Renewable) 

Generation Rate ($/kWh) $0.11484 $0.10164 $0.11164 
PG&E Delivery Rate ($/kWh) $0.10358 $0.10358 $0.10358 
PG&E PCIA/FF ($/kWh) $0.02567 $0.01998 $0.01998 
Total Electricity Cost ($/kWh) $0.24409 $0.22520 $0.23520 
Average Monthly Bill ($) $5,457.56 $5,035.20 $5,258.79 

Monthly usage: 22,359 kWh, monthly demand: 53 kW 

Rates are current as of March 1, 2022 

9 

Item 10 
Attachment 1

79



  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
              

     

     
     

    
    

     
     

    
    

  

 
 

 
              

     

    
    

    
    

     
     

     
     

   

 
 

             
    

    
    

    
    

     
     

     
    

   

 

 
 

             
    

    
    

    
    

    
     

     
      

   

Agricultura

-

-

-

-

Agricultural 

AG-1A 

Agricultural: AG 1A PG&E MCE Light Green 
(61% Renewable) 

MCE Deep Green 
(100% Renewable) 

Generation Rate ($/kWh) $0.10558 $0.09648 $0.10648 
PG&E Delivery Rate ($/kWh) $0.26344 $0.26344 $0.26344 
PG&E PCIA/FF ($/kWh) $0.02371 $0.01845 $0.01845 
Total Electricity Cost ($/kWh) $0.39273 $0.37837 $0.38837 
Average Monthly Bill ($) $293.10 $282.38 $289.85 

Monthly usage: 746 kWh, monthly demand: 9 kW 

Rates are current as of March 1, 2022 

AG-1B 

Agricultural: AG 1B PG&E MCE Light Green 
(61% Renewable) 

MCE Deep Green 
(100% Renewable) 

Generation Rate ($/kWh) $0.10385 $0.09450 $0.10450 
PG&E Delivery Rate ($/kWh) $0.19678 $0.19678 $0.19678 
PG&E PCIA/FF ($/kWh) $0.02371 $0.01845 $0.01845 
Total Electricity Cost ($/kWh) $0.32434 $0.30973 $0.31973 
Average Monthly Bill ($) $368.21 $351.62 $362.98 

Monthly usage: 1,135 kWh, monthly demand: 11 kW 

Rates are current as of March 1, 2022 

AG-4A 

Agricultural: AG 4A PG&E MCE Light Green
(61% Renewable) 

MCE Deep Green
(100% Renewable) 

Generation Rate ($/kWh) $0.10519 $0.09876 $0.10876 
PG&E Delivery Rate ($/kWh) $0.29749 $0.29749 $0.29749 
PG&E PCIA/FF ($/kWh) $0.02371 $0.01845 $0.01845 
Total Electricity Cost ($/kWh) $0.42639 $0.41470 $0.42470 
Average Monthly Bill ($) $268.98 $261.61 $267.92 

Monthly usage: 631 kWh, monthly demand: 8 kW 

Rates are current as of March 1, 2022 

AG-4B 

Agricultural: AG 4B PG&E MCE Light Green
(61% Renewable) 

MCE Deep Green
(100% Renewable) 

Generation Rate ($/kWh) $0.11122 $0.10061 $0.11061 
PG&E Delivery Rate ($/kWh) $0.17975 $0.17975 $0.17975 
PG&E PCIA/FF ($/kWh) $0.02371 $0.01845 $0.01845 
Total Electricity Cost ($/kWh) $0.31468 $0.29881 $0.30881 
Average Monthly Bill ($) $1,298.87 $1,233.37 $1,274.64 

Monthly usage: 4,128 kWh, monthly demand: 23 kW 

Rates are current as of March 1, 2022 

10 

Item 10 
Attachment 1

80



  

 
 

             
    

    
    

    
    

    
     

    
      

   

         
 

             
    

    
    

    
    

    
     

    
      

   

         
 

                      
   

    
    

    
    

    
     

    
                         

  

             
 

                      
   

    
    

    
    

    
     

    
                  

  

          

 

          

 

 

 

-

-

-

-

AG-5A 

Agricultural: AG 5A PG&E MCE Light Green
(61% Renewable) 

MCE Deep Green
(100% Renewable) 

Generation Rate ($/kWh) $0.10316 $0.09499 $0.10499 
PG&E Delivery Rate ($/kWh) $0.14552 $0.14552 $0.14552 
PG&E PCIA/FF ($/kWh) $0.02371 $0.01845 $0.01845 
Total Electricity Cost ($/kWh) $0.27239 $0.25896 $0.26896 
Average Monthly Bill ($) $1,057.35 $1,005.22 $1,044.03 

Monthly usage: 3,882 kWh, monthly demand: 12 kW 

Rates are current as of March 1, 2022 

AG-5B 

Agricultural: AG 5B PG&E MCE Light Green 
(61% Renewable) 

MCE Deep Green 
(100% Renewable) 

Generation Rate ($/kWh) $0.10420 $0.08468 $0.09468 
PG&E Delivery Rate ($/kWh) $0.12440 $0.12440 $0.12440 
PG&E PCIA/FF ($/kWh) $0.02371 $0.01845 $0.01845 
Total Electricity Cost ($/kWh) $0.25231 $0.22753 $0.23753 
Average Monthly Bill ($) $2,461.57 $2,219.82 $2,317.38 

Monthly usage: 9,756 kWh, monthly demand: 34 kW 

Rates are current as of March 1, 2022 

AG-A1 

Agricultural: AG A1 PG&E MCE Light Green
(61% Renewable) 

MCE Deep Green
(100% Renewable) 

Generation Rate ($/kWh) $0.10719 $0.09893 $0.10893 
PG&E Delivery Rate ($/kWh) $0.24117 $0.24117 $0.24117 
PG&E PCIA/FF ($/kWh) $0.02371 $0.01845 $0.01845 
Total Electricity Cost ($/kWh) $0.37207 $0.35855 $0.36855 
Average Monthly Bill ($) $274.11 $264.15 $271.52 

Monthly usage: 737 kWh, monthly demand: 6 kW 

Rates are current as of March 1, 2022 

AG-A2 

Agricultural: AG A2 PG&E MCE Light Green
(61% Renewable) 

MCE Deep Green
(100% Renewable) 

Generation Rate ($/kWh) $0.10720 $0.09897 $0.10897 
PG&E Delivery Rate ($/kWh) $0.18648 $0.18648 $0.18648 
PG&E PCIA/FF ($/kWh) $0.02371 $0.01845 $0.01845 
Total Electricity Cost ($/kWh) $0.31739 $0.30390 $0.31390 
Average Monthly Bill ($) $321.53 $307.86 $317.99 

Monthly usage:1,013 kWh, monthly demand: 6 kW 

Rates are current as of March 1, 2022 

11 

Item 10 
Attachment 1

81



  

         
 

             
    

    
    

    
    

    
     

     
       

  

 
  
 

              
    

    
    

    
    

    
     

     
    

  

-

-

AG-B 

Agricultural: AG B PG&E MCE Light Green 
(61% Renewable) 

MCE Deep Green 
(100% Renewable) 

Generation Rate ($/kWh) $0.12226 $0.11991 $0.12991 
PG&E Delivery Rate ($/kWh) $0.19144 $0.19144 $0.19144 
PG&E PCIA/FF ($/kWh) $0.02371 $0.01845 $0.01845 
Total Electricity Cost ($/kWh) $0.33741 $0.32980 $0.33980 
Average Monthly Bill ($) $1,288.31 $1,259.26 $1,297.44 

Monthly usage: 3,818 kWh, monthly demand: 32 kW 

Rates are current as of March 1, 2022 

AG-C 

Agricultural: AG C PG&E MCE Light Green
(61% Renewable) 

MCE Deep Green
(100% Renewable) 

Generation Rate ($/kWh) $0.10153 $0.10124 $0.11124 
PG&E Delivery Rate ($/kWh) $0.11932 $0.11932 $0.11932 
PG&E PCIA/FF ($/kWh) $0.02371 $0.01845 $0.01845 
Total Electricity Cost ($/kWh) $0.24456 $0.23901 $0.24901 
Average Monthly Bill ($) $2,862.90 $2,797.93 $2,914.99 

Monthly usage: 11,706 kWh, monthly demand:44kW 

Rates are current as of March 1, 2022 

12 

Item 10 
Attachment 1

82



  

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

      
    

    
    

    
    

    
     

    
  

   
 

 
 

      
    

    
    

    
     

    
     

    
  

   

Streetlight and Outdoor Lighting 

LS-3 
Streetlights: 
LS3 PG&E MCE Light Green

(61% Renewable) 
MCE Deep Green
(100% Renewable) 

Generation Rate ($/kWh) $0.09893 $0.08900 $0.09900 
PG&E Delivery Rate ($/kWh) $0.14582 $0.14582 $0.14582 
PG&E PCIA/FF ($/kWh) $0.02112 $0.01644 $0.01644 
Total Electricity Cost ($/kWh) $0.26587 $0.25126 $0.26126 
Average Monthly Bill ($) $49.23 $46.53 $48.38 

Monthly usage: 185 kWh 

Rates are current as of March 1, 2022 

TC-1 
Streetlights: 
TC1 PG&E MCE Light Green 

(61% Renewable) 
MCE Deep Green 
(100% Renewable) 

Generation Rate ($/kWh) $0.10847 $0.09400 $0.10400 
PG&E Delivery Rate ($/kWh) $0.17209 $0.17209 $0.17209 
PG&E PCIA/FF ($/kWh) $0.02554 $0.01987 $0.01987 
Total Electricity Cost ($/kWh) $0.30610 $0.28596 $0.29596 
Average Monthly Bill ($) $85.87 $80.22 $83.03 

Monthly usage: 281 kWh 

Rates are current as of March 1, 2022 

13 

Item 10 
Attachment 1

83



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

84



M
C

E 
&

 S
ui

su
n 

C
ity

M
a

y 
3,

 2
02

2

1

Item 10 
Attachment 2

85



Lo
ca

l C
lim

at
e 

Im
pa

ct
s 

2

I-8
0 

Va
ca

vi
lle

 –
LN

U 
fir

e 
co

m
pl

ex
so

ur
ce

: S
F 

C
hr

on
ic

le
 

Su
isu

n 
M

ar
sh

 
so

ur
ce

: U
SF

W
S 

ph
ot

o/
St

ev
e 

M
ar

ta
ra

no

Item 10 
Attachment 2

86



C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n 

-S
ui

su
n 

C
ity

3

M
ul

tip
le

 p
ol

ic
ie

s a
nd

 re
co

m
m

en
d

a
tio

ns
 h

a
ve

 
a

lre
a

d
y 

be
en

 id
en

tif
ie

d
 in

 S
ui

su
n 

C
ity

 G
en

er
a

l 
Pl

a
n 

to
 re

d
uc

e 
G

re
en

ho
us

e 
G

as
 E

m
iss

io
ns

•
Im

pr
ov

e 
en

er
gy

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 o

ut
co

m
es

•
A

d
op

tio
n 

of
 e

le
ct

ric
 v

eh
ic

le
 c

ha
rg

in
g 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e
•

Pu
bl

ic
 o

ut
re

a
ch

 o
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
in

ce
nt

iv
es

•
In

st
a

lla
tio

n 
of

 s
ol

ar

Item 10 
Attachment 2

87



O
UR

 M
IS

SI
O

N
 

C
on

fro
nt

 th
e 

cl
im

at
e 

cr
isi

s 
by

 e
lim

in
at

in
g 

fo
ss

il 
fu

el
 g

re
en

ho
us

e 
ga

s 
em

iss
io

ns
, 

pr
od

uc
in

g 
re

ne
w

ab
le

 e
ne

rg
y,

 a
nd

 
cr

ea
tin

g 
eq

ui
ta

bl
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 b

en
ef

its
.

Item 10 
Attachment 2

88



37
 M

em
be

r C
om

m
un

iti
es

5

4 
Ba

y 
A

re
a 

C
ou

nt
ie

s

~5
80

,0
00

 
A

cc
ou

nt
s

1 
m

ill
io

n 
+ 

C
us

to
m

er
s

Item 10 
Attachment 2

89



C
om

m
un

ity
 C

ho
ic

e 
A

gg
re

ga
tio

n

En
ab

lin
g 

Le
gi

sla
tio

n
A

B 
11

7,
 2

00
2

•
Lo

ca
l n

ot
-fo

r-p
ro

fit
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t 
ag

en
cy

 
•

D
ef

au
lt 

se
rv

ic
e 

pr
ov

id
er

 in
 o

pt
 

ou
t m

od
el

•
C

C
A

 ta
ke

s o
ve

r g
en

er
at

io
n 

se
rv

ic
es

, o
ffe

rin
g 

cu
st

om
er

 
ch

oi
ce

6

Item 10 
Attachment 2

90



Ho
w

 E
le

ct
ric

 S
er

vi
ce

 W
or

ks

7

Item 10 
Attachment 2

91



To
p 

M
C

E 
C

us
to

m
er

 Q
ue

st
io

ns

A
ut

om
at

ic
 E

nr
ol

lm
en

t
•H

ist
or

ic
al

ly
, i

nv
es

to
r-o

w
ne

d
 u

til
iti

es
 (I

O
Us

) h
av

e 
be

en
 th

e 
de

fa
ul

t s
er

vi
ce

 p
ro

vi
de

rt
o 

cu
st

om
er

s. 
In

 
20

02
, w

he
n 

st
at

e 
le

gi
sla

to
rs

 p
as

se
d

 A
B 

11
7,

 th
is 

d
ef

au
lt 

st
at

us
 w

as
 tr

an
sf

er
re

d
 fr

om
 th

e 
in

ve
st

or
-

ow
ne

d
 u

til
ity

 to
 th

e 
lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
ity

 c
ho

ic
e 

ag
gr

eg
at

or
 (C

C
A

) w
he

n 
av

ai
la

bl
e.

 

C
os

t
•M

C
E’

s e
le

ct
ric

ity
 se

rv
ic

e 
is 

co
st

 c
om

pe
tit

iv
e 

w
ith

, a
nd

 o
fte

n 
lo

w
er

 th
an

, P
G

&
E’

s s
er

vi
ce

 fo
r t

yp
ic

al
 

cu
st

om
er

s. 
Ty

pi
ca

l F
ai

rfi
el

d 
re

sid
en

ts
 a

nd
 b

us
in

es
se

s 
w

ill
 sa

ve
 5

%
 o

n 
th

ei
r t

ot
al

 e
le

ct
ric

ity
 

bi
ll w

ith
 M

C
E 

co
m

pa
re

d
 to

 P
G

&
E.

 

So
la

r I
m

pa
ct

s
•I

f y
ou

 a
re

 a
lre

ad
y 

en
ro

lle
d

 in
 P

G
&

E’
s N

EM
 p

ro
gr

am
, y

ou
 w

ill 
au

to
m

at
ic

al
ly

 b
e 

en
ro

lle
d

 in
 M

C
E’

s 
N

EM
 p

ro
gr

am
 –

no
 a

ct
io

n 
is 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y.
 M

C
E 

w
ill

 b
ec

om
e 

yo
ur

 p
rim

ar
y 

el
ec

tri
ci

ty
 p

ro
vi

de
r s

ta
rti

ng
 

on
 y

ou
r n

ex
t t

ru
e-

up
 d

at
e.

M
C

E 
w

ill
 s

en
d 

2 
no

tif
ic

at
io

ns
 b

ef
or

e 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
st

ar
ts

.

Item 10 
Attachment 2

92



To
p 

M
C

E 
C

us
to

m
er

 Q
ue

st
io

ns

W
ha

t c
ha

ng
es

•E
le

ct
ric

ity
 p

ro
cu

re
d

 fo
r F

ai
rfi

el
d

 w
ill 

co
m

e 
fro

m
 o

ve
r 6

0%
 to

 1
00

%
 re

ne
w

ab
le

 so
ur

ce
s. 

W
ha

t s
ta

ys
 th

e 
sa

m
e

•Y
ou

r m
on

th
ly

 b
illi

ng
 w

ill 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 c
om

e 
fro

m
 P

G
&

E.
 R

es
id

en
ts

 e
nr

ol
le

d
 in

 b
ill 

sa
vi

ng
s p

ro
gr

am
s 

(C
A

RE
/F

ER
A

/M
ed

ic
al

 B
as

el
in

e)
 w

ill 
re

m
ai

n 
on

 th
es

e 
pr

og
ra

m
s. 

C
us

to
m

er
s w

ill 
re

m
ai

n 
el

ig
ib

le
 fo

r 
PG

&
E 

em
pl

oy
ee

 d
isc

ou
nt

s. 

Lo
ca

l C
on

tro
l

•M
C

E 
is 

go
ve

rn
ed

 b
y 

a 
bo

ar
d

 o
f l

oc
al

 e
le

ct
ed

 o
ffi

ci
al

s t
ha

t r
ep

re
se

nt
 th

e 
m

em
be

r c
om

m
un

iti
es

 w
e 

se
rv

e.
 O

ur
 st

ru
ct

ur
e 

as
 a

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t a

ge
nc

y 
en

su
re

s t
ra

ns
pa

re
nc

y 
in

 d
ec

isi
on

 m
ak

in
g.

 

Item 10 
Attachment 2

93



Lo
ng

-te
rm

 F
in

ic
al

 S
tre

ng
th

 

M
C

E 
O

pe
ra

tin
g 

C
os

ts
7%

C
om

m
un

ity
Re

in
ve

st
m

en
t &

 
Re

se
rv

es
7%

C
le

a
n 

Po
w

er
 

Pu
rc

ha
sin

g 
86

%

In
ve

st
m

en
t-

gr
ad

e 
cr

ed
it 

ra
tin

gs
he

lp
 M

C
E 

se
cu

re
 p

ow
er

 
at

 b
et

te
r r

at
es

“A
” 

S&
P

“B
BB

+”
 Fi

tc
h

Item 10 
Attachment 2

94



W
ith

 P
G

&
E 

  
Se

rv
ic

e

Sa
m

pl
e 

Bi
ll

W
ith

 M
C

E 
   

 
Se

rv
ic

e

11

Item 10 
Attachment 2

95



Re
sid

en
tia

l R
at

es

12

Item 10 
Attachment 2

96



Bi
ll R

el
ie

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 fo

r t
he

  
C

om
m

un
ity

A
d

d
ito

na
l 

su
pp

or
t t

o 
cu

st
om

er
s:

•
C

A
RE

•
FE

RA
•

LI
HE

A
P

•
M

ed
ic

al
 

Ba
se

lin
e

•
A

M
P

•
M

C
E 

C
ar

es
 

C
re

d
it 

Item 10 
Attachment 2

97



M
em

be
r C

om
m

un
ity

 
Be

ne
fit

s 

14

Item 10 
Attachment 2

98



C
us

to
m

er
 V

al
ue

 P
ro

po
sit

io
n

Re
ne

w
ab

le
, 

lo
ca

lly
-c

on
tro

lle
d

, 
co

st
-c

om
pe

tit
iv

e 
el

ec
tri

ci
ty

 o
pt

io
ns

A
lm

os
t t

w
ic

e 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f r

en
ew

ab
le

 
en

er
gy

 th
an

 
tra

d
iti

on
al

 se
rv

ic
e

90
%

 
gr

ee
nh

ou
se

 
ga

s-
fre

e

15

M
C

E 
cu

st
om

er
s 

ar
e 

gr
ee

ni
ng

 o
ur

 e
le

ct
ric

ity
 s

up
pl

y 
w

hi
le

 
be

ne
fit

tin
g 

fro
m

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 in
 lo

ca
l e

ne
rg

y 
pr

og
ra

m
s.

Item 10 
Attachment 2

99



M
C

E 
Bo

ar
d

 o
f D

ire
ct

or
s

Lo
ca

l C
on

tro
l

31
 B

oa
rd

 M
em

be
rs

. E
le

ct
ed

 o
ffi

ci
al

s. 
N

o 
ta

x 
d

ol
la

rs
.

16

Ka
ty

 M
ie

ss
ne

r
V

a
lle

jo
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il
C

hr
ist

in
a

 S
tra

w
br

id
ge

Be
ni

ci
a

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il

Jo
hn

 V
a

sq
ue

z
So

la
no

 C
ou

nt
y 

BO
S

D
or

iss
 P

a
nd

ur
o

Fa
irf

ie
ld

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il

Item 10 
Attachment 2

100



C
ho

ic
e 

Is 
Po

w
er

M
C

E 
D

ef
au

lt 
Se

rv
ic

e

O
ld

 
D

ef
au

lt 
Se

rv
ic

e 

31
%

Re
ne

w
ab

le
PG

&E

60
%

Re
ne

w
ab

le
M

C
E

Lig
ht

 G
re

en

10
0%

Re
ne

w
ab

le
 

M
C

E
De

ep
 G

re
en

O
pt

Up
 C

ho
ic

e

17

Item 10 
Attachment 2

101



Yo
ur

 D
ol

la
rs

 a
t W

or
k

En
er

gy
Ef

fic
ie

nc
y

A
ud

its
, R

eb
at

es
, 

Us
ag

e 
Re

du
ct

io
n

•
$2

.4
M

 in
 re

ba
te

s
•

O
ve

r 1
,2

00
 

cu
st

o m
er

s s
er

ve
d

El
ec

tri
c 

Ve
hi

cl
es

Ve
hi

cl
e 

an
d 

C
ha

rg
in

g 
St

at
io

n 
Re

ba
te

s

•
O

ve
r 1

,1
00

 E
V 

ch
ar

gi
ng

 p
or

ts
 

in
st

al
le

d
•

15
0 

ve
hi

cl
e 

re
ba

te
s

El
ec

tri
fic

at
io

n 

He
at

pu
m

p
In

st
al

ls 
an

d 
C

on
tra

ct
or

 Tr
ai

ni
ng

•
25

+ 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

s 
en

ga
ge

d 
an

d 
12

5 
pu

m
ps

 in
st

al
le

d

Eq
ui

ty
, H

ea
lth

, 
& 

Sa
fe

ty

He
al

th
, S

af
et

y,
 a

nd
 

Re
sil

ie
nc

y 
Up

gr
ad

es

•
10

0 
po

rta
bi

lit
y 

ba
tt

er
ie

s d
ist

rib
ut

ed
 

•
$7

50
,0

00
 in

 so
la

r 
re

ba
t e

s

Ba
tte

ry
 S

to
ra

ge
 

& 
Re

sil
ie

nc
y

Re
ba

te
s, 

Fin
an

ci
ng

, 
an

d 
Te

ch
ni

ca
l 

A
ss

ist
an

ce

•
$1

0 
m

illi
on

 re
sil

ie
nc

y 
fu

nd

Item 10 
Attachment 2

102



Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
El

ec
tri

fic
at

io
n

In
co

m
e 

Q
ua

lif
ie

d
 E

le
ct

ric
 V

eh
ic

le
 

In
ce

nt
iv

es
 ($

3,
50

0)
M

ul
ti-

Fa
m

ily
 a

nd
 W

or
kp

la
ce

 C
ha

rg
in

g 
St

at
io

ns
 In

ce
nt

iv
es

 (u
p 

to
 $

3,
50

0/
po

rt)

Item 10 
Attachment 2

103



St
ep

s t
o 

Jo
in

 M
C

E
1.

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il p

as
se

s r
es

ol
ut

io
n,

 o
rd

in
an

ce
, a

nd
 m

em
or

an
d

um
 o

f 
un

d
er

st
an

d
in

g 
to

 jo
in

 M
C

E;

2.
M

ay
or

 si
gn

s s
ig

na
tu

re
 p

ag
e 

of
 M

C
E’

s j
oi

nt
 p

ow
er

s a
ut

ho
rit

y 
(J

PA
) 

ag
re

em
en

t;

3.
C

ity
 st

af
f c

om
pl

et
es

 tw
o 

re
qu

ire
d

 P
G

&
E 

fo
rm

s (
fo

rm
s 7

9–
10

30
 a

nd
 7

9–
10

31
);

4.
M

C
E 

co
nd

uc
ts

 te
ch

ni
ca

l a
na

ly
sis

;

5.
M

C
E 

bo
ar

d
 o

f d
ire

ct
or

s h
ol

d
s v

ot
e 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
pr

os
pe

ct
iv

e 
ne

w
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 

by
 e

nd
 o

f 2
02

2;

6.
En

ro
llm

en
t o

f n
ew

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 b
eg

in
s i

n 
20

24
, p

en
d

in
g 

ce
rti

fic
at

io
n 

by
 th

e 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 P
ub

lic
 U

til
iti

es
 C

om
m

iss
io

n 
(C

PU
C

).

Th
er

e 
is 

no
 c

os
t t

o 
jo

in
 M

C
E

20

Item 10 
Attachment 2

104



Th
an

k 
Yo

u!
Se

ba
st

ia
n 

C
on

n
C

om
m

un
ity

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t M
an

ag
er

sc
on

n@
m

ce
cl

ea
ne

ne
rg

y.
or

g

Item 10 
Attachment 2

105



A
d

d
en

d
um

Item 10 
Attachment 2

106



20
20

 E
le

ct
ric

ity
 C

on
te

nt
 

PG
&

E
M

C
E

Lig
ht

 G
re

en
M

C
E

D
ee

p 
G

re
en

Re
ne

w
ab

le
 (%

)
3 3 1 15 8

Bi
oe

ne
rg

y
G

eo
th

er
m

al
Sm

al
l H

yd
ro

So
la

r
W

in
d

La
rg

e 
Hy

d
ro

N
at

ur
al

 G
as

N
uc

le
ar

Un
sp

ec
ifi

ed
/O

th
er

31
%

61
%

10
0%

2 6 3 23 27

0 0 0 50 50
10 16 43 0

36 0 1 1

0 0 0 0
23

Item 10 
Attachment 2

107



Ro
of

to
p 

So
la

r C
us

to
m

er
s

N
et

 E
ne

rg
y 

M
et

er
in

g 
(N

EM
)

M
on

th
ly

 su
rp

lu
s g

en
er

a
tio

n 
cr

ed
ite

d
 a

t r
et

a
il 

ra
te

Su
rp

lu
s a

nn
ua

l g
en

er
a

tio
n

is 
cr

ed
ite

d
 a

t t
w

ic
e 

th
e

w
ho

le
sa

le
 ra

te

Bi
llin

g:
 M

on
th

ly
ch

a
rg

es
 

a
nd

 c
re

d
its

 fo
r g

en
er

a
tio

n

60
%

 o
r 1

00
%

 re
ne

w
ab

le
 

en
er

gy
 s

er
vi

ce
w

he
n 

yo
u 

us
e 

en
er

gy
 fr

om
 th

e 
gr

id

M
on

th
ly

 su
rp

lu
s g

en
er

a
tio

n 
cr

ed
ite

d
 a

t r
et

a
il 

ra
te

Su
rp

lu
s a

nn
ua

l g
en

er
a

tio
n 

is 
cr

ed
ite

d
 a

t t
he

 
w

ho
le

sa
le

 ra
te

Bi
llin

g:
 A

nn
ua

lt
ru

e-
up

31
%

 re
ne

w
ab

le
 e

ne
rg

y 
se

rv
ic

e 
w

he
n 

yo
u 

us
e 

en
er

gy
 fr

om
 th

e 
gr

id

24

Item 10 
Attachment 2

108



M
C

Ev
C

as
e 

St
ud

y

C
ity

 o
f 

Ri
ch

m
on

d
 

Pr
oj

ec
t S

co
pe

•
6 

po
rts

 in
st

al
le

d
•

$1
5,

00
0 

in
 re

ba
te

s
•

M
C

Ev
ch

ar
gi

ng
 re

ba
te

s c
ov

er
ed

 8
9%

 o
f c

os
t

Be
ne

fit
s

•
Up

gr
ad

ed
 d

isc
on

tin
ue

d
 c

ha
rg

er
s w

ith
 

ne
tw

or
ke

d
 st

at
io

ns
•

D
ou

bl
ed

 c
ha

rg
in

g 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 fr

om
 si

ng
le

-p
or

t 
to

 d
ua

l-p
or

t s
ta

tio
ns

•
C

ity
 o

ffe
rs

 u
p 

to
 4

 h
ou

rs
 o

f f
re

e 
ch

ar
gi

ng
 to

 
st

af
f a

s e
m

pl
oy

ee
 b

en
ef

it
•

EV
 c

ha
rg

er
s w

ith
 D

ee
p 

G
re

en
 1

00
%

 
re

ne
w

ab
le

 e
le

ct
ric

ity

“I
 h

av
e 

an
d

 w
ou

ld
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 o
th

er
s t

o 
ut

iliz
e 

th
es

e 
M

C
E 

pr
og

ra
m

s a
s t

he
y 

w
er

e 
ve

ry
 in

st
ru

m
en

ta
l t

o 
in

cr
ea

se
 o

ur
 se

rv
ic

e 
d

el
iv

er
ab

le
s t

o 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

.”
 

De
né

e
Ev

an
s,

 O
ffi

ce
 o

f t
he

 C
ity

 M
an

ag
er

, R
ic

hm
on

d,
 C

A
25

Item 10 
Attachment 2

109



M
C

E 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

En
er

gy
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
(S

EM
) 

•
Re

d
uc

e 
a

nn
ua

l e
ne

rg
y 

us
a

ge
 b

y 
up

 to
 1

5%
 

•
SE

M
 p

ro
vi

d
es

 th
e 

to
ol

s, 
co

a
ch

in
g,

 st
ru

ct
ur

e,
 a

nd
 

re
so

ur
ce

s t
o 

ac
hi

ev
e 

en
er

gy
 s

av
in

gs
 th

ro
ug

h 
op

er
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 c

ha
ng

es
 

a
nd

 b
y 

en
ga

gi
ng

 
em

pl
oy

ee
s. 

Item 10 
Attachment 2

110



So
la

r +
 B

at
te

ry
 S

to
ra

ge
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

M
C

E 
En

er
gy

 S
to

ra
ge

 P
ro

gr
am

•
M

a
xim

ize
 th

e 
va

lu
e 

of
 y

ou
r 

so
la

r s
ys

te
m

 b
y 

in
st

al
lin

g 
en

er
gy

 s
to

ra
ge

.
•

Ke
ep

 th
e 

el
ec

tri
ci

ty
 o

n 
d

ur
in

g 
gr

id
 o

ut
a

ge
s.

•
By

 u
sin

g 
yo

ur
 fa

ci
lit

y’
s s

ol
a

r t
o 

ch
a

rg
e 

yo
ur

 b
a

tte
ry

, y
ou

 
en

su
re

 c
le

an
 e

le
ct

ric
ity

 is
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 p
ow

er
 y

ou
r f

a
ci

lit
y 

d
ur

in
g 

ou
ta

ge
s

Item 10 
Attachment 2

111



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

112



______________________________________________________________________________ 

PREPARED BY: Lakhwinder Deol, Finance Director 

REVIEWED/APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 
 

MEETING DATE:  May 03, 2022 

 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:  Fiscal Year 2022-23 Annual Presentation of Conceptual Budget 

Strategy. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  There would be no fiscal impact at this time. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

STRATEGIC PLAN IMPACT: Provide Good Governance, Section 4.1 – Review and update 

required planning and financial documents as needed.  Ensure Fiscal Solvency, Section 5.9 – 

Commit to a balanced budget and prepare for recession. 

 

BACKGROUND:  The FY 2022-23 Annual Budget will be presented to the City Council at the 

Budget Hearing on June 21, 2022.  As a prelude to finalizing the full budget document, this item 

provides a summary and overview of the Recommended FY 2022-23 Annual Budget with an 

emphasis on the General Fund and Measure S.  Other funds are not reviewed in depth as most of 

the other funds have little discretion to the use of the money except for within the allowed uses 

of the funding source.  This agenda item provides the Council with an opportunity to provide 

feedback about the proposed budget prior to preparing the document itself in advance of the 

public hearing. 

 

STAFF REPORT:  Staff presented the FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget to Council at the  April 

19, 2022 Budget Workshop. Council discussed the proposed budget and directed staff to bring 

back cost reduction options to discuss if the City can allocate up to $2 million to additional street 

improvements.  

 

General Fund and Measure S Fund Fiscal Analysis 

The General Fund is the primary fund that is used by the City. Main sources of revenues in the 

General Fund are property taxes, sales taxes, transient occupancy taxes, cannabis taxes, and 

charges for services. The Proposed Budget has $23,618,273 in total resources (including transfer 

ins and beginning balance) and $21,930,672 in total expenditures (including transfer outs) 

resulting in a General Fund surplus or ending balance of $1,687,600. To comply with the 

Council adopted policy of having a 20% operating budget emergency reserve, $1,239,434 of the 

ending balance will be transferred to the Reserve Fund (Fund 015) leaving the General Fund 

with an ending balance of $448,166.   

Measure S is a 1% general transactions and use tax levied on gross receipts within the city of 

Suisun City, online, and on vehicles purchased anywhere in the state. Measure S was approved 

by the voters of Suisun City in 2016 and has a 10-year term. The Measure S Oversight 

Committee has the responsibility to review financial reports to ensure compliance with the legal 

use of the revenues, which as a general transactions tax, can be any lawful public purpose.  

 

Item 11

113



FUNDING ADDITIONAL STREET IMPROVEMENTS  

The original proposed budget included $340,000 in street improvement funding from Measure S, 

in addition to anticipated funding from SB 1 of approximately $500,000, and any subsequent 

road improvement grant funding that staff is able to get.  Grant funding for roads is usually only 

available for arterials or major collector streets, safe routes to school improvements, or for streets 

supporting affordable housing developments.  

On April 19, 2022, the Council directed staff to bring back some cost reduction options for 

Council to consider allocating additional funding for street improvements. The following chart 

provides options from 16 vacant personnel positions (new and existing) and 

reallocation/elimination of American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) potential projects to free up 

additional funding for street improvements. Measure S is funding 10 vacant positions and ARPA 

is funding 6 vacant positions.  Council can mix and match line-item reductions from this chart to 

get to whatever level of additional funding beyond SB 1 (approximately $500,000) is desired for 

road improvements.  Note that it costs approximately $600,000 to do an Asphalt Concrete 

overlay for one lane mile of roadway or approximately $300,000 to do an Asphalt Rubber Cape 

Seal and that the city has 153.6 lane miles of roadway within the city limits. 

 

However, if the Fire Department cannot staff two engines, then the response requirements to 

access Public Private Partnership (PPP) funding from the Medic Ambulance contract for 

providing Advanced Life Support services will not be achievable and the previously budgeted 

revenues must be removed. 

 

Position  Amount  Source 

Captain positions (3) - new  $            495,480  Measure S 

Public Safety Dispatcher (2) - new  $            194,638  Measure S 

Computer Technician - new  $            125,573  Measure S 

Battalion Chief (3) positions – vacant  $            559,131  Measure S 

Code Enforcement - vacant  $            116,249  Measure S 

Community Services Officer – recruiting  $            116,249  ARPA 

Police Officers - (2) vacant  $            279,924  ARPA 

Fire Engineers - (3) – in background  $            433,400  ARPA 

Fire Rescue Vehicle – new  $            350,000  ARPA 

Homeless Project  $            150,000  ARPA 

Outdoor dining matching grant program  $              50,000  ARPA 

Wayfinding/Signage project  $              75,000  ARPA 

Economic Development Marketing  $              45,000  ARPA 

Public Space Broadband  $              50,000  ARPA 

Item 11

114



Tablets for Councilmembers  $              10,000  ARPA 

Total   $        3,050,644.00  
 

 

While Council can choose to mix and match any of the above line items, staff has prepared two 

potential scenarios for Council to consider:  

SCENARIO 1 – Up to $2.3M  

Under Scenario 1, Council can consider not funding new Fire Captain (3) positions, Police 

Officers (2) positions, Fire Engineers (3) positions, and a Community Services Officer position. 

The Battalion Chief (3) positions must be replaced with one Division Chief position plus rotating 

Duty Pay for all three Chief Officers (Fire Chief, Deputy Chief, Division Chief) in order to have 

a Duty Chief overnight and weekends (which would otherwise have been the role of the 

Battalion Chiefs). Eliminating the Battalion Chiefs and reverting back to our previous “Duty 

Chief” structure will save about $259,000 but will be difficult to sustain on an ongoing basis as it 

makes it difficult for the Chief Officers to take time off and could lead to burn out. 

 

This scenario also includes elimination of potential ARPA projects such as: Fire Rescue Vehicle, 

Homelessness project, Outdoor dining matching grant program, Wayfinding/Signage project, 

Economic Development Marketing, Public Space Broadband, and Tablets for Councilmembers 

projects. These ARPA projects add up to cost savings of $730,000. 

 

Total savings with this scenario is up to $2.3 million.  This option maintains needed new Public 

Safety Dispatchers to meet requirements for Emergency Medical Dispatch and also provides a 

new Computer Technician to assist with implementation of the numerous hardware and software 

upgrades that are in process (upgraded internet; improved Council Chamber audio; new servers; 

new phone system; new website; new agenda management software; and new ERP – including 

software for Finance, HR, permitting, and Public Works maintenance management).  Council 

could add back the two additional Police Officers or the Fire Rescue Vehicle and be close to the 

$2M in additional street funding for a total of approximately $2.5M when including SB 1 

funding.  

 

However, the Fire Department will remain at low-level staffing levels that will preclude the 

ability to staff a second engine or to participate in PPP funding. 

 

Position  Amount  Source 

Captain positions (3) - new  $            0 Measure S 

Public Safety Dispatcher (2) - new  $            194,638  Measure S 

Computer Technician - new  $            125,573  Measure S 

Battalion Chief (3) positions – vacant = Div Chief 

+ Duty Pay 

 $            300,000  Measure S 

Item 11

115



Code Enforcement- vacant  $             116,249 Measure S 

Community Services Officer – recruiting  $             0  ARPA 

Police Officers - (2) vacant  $             0  ARPA 

Fire Engineers - (3) in background $              0 ARPA 

Fire Rescue Vehicle – new  $              0  ARPA 

Homeless Project  $              0  ARPA 

Outdoor dining matching grant program  $              0  ARPA 

Wayfinding/Signage project  $              0 ARPA 

Economic Development Marketing  $              0  ARPA 

Public Space Broadband  $              0  ARPA 

Tablets for Councilmembers  $              0  ARPA 

Savings  $        2,314,184  
 

 

SCENARIO 2 – Up to $1.1M 

This scenario maintains the ability to staff two engines.  Under Scenario 2, the Council can 

consider not funding the Community Services Officer position and convert Battalion Chief (3) 

positions to the one Division Chief position plus the Duty Pay. The ARPA potential projects 

totaling $730,000 can still be eliminated.  

 

Position  Amount  Source 

Captain positions (3) - new  $            495,480  Measure S 

Public Safety Dispatcher (2) - new  $            194,638  Measure S 

Computer Technician - new  $            125,573  Measure S 

Battalion Chief (3) positions – vacant = Div Chief + 

Duty pay 

 $            300,000  Measure S 

Code Enforcement- vacant  $            116,249  Measure S 

Item 11

116



Community Services Officer – recruiting  $            0  ARPA 

Police Officers - vacant  $            279,924  ARPA 

Fire Engineers (3) – in background  $            433,400  ARPA 

Fire Rescue Vehicle – new  $              0  ARPA 

Homeless Project  $              0  ARPA 

Outdoor dining matching grant program  $              0  ARPA 

Wayfinding/Signage project  $              0 ARPA 

Economic Development Marketing  $              0  ARPA 

Public Space Broadband  $              0  ARPA 

Tablets for Councilmembers  $              0  ARPA 

Savings  $        1,105,380  

 

 

The two proposed scenarios will provide additional funding for street improvement projects but 

eliminating personnel has major impacts on city services. The Public Safety and Information 

Technology departments will have significant operational issues. Staffing is already very limited in 

those departments and eliminating any additional positions will create more stressful environment 

and employee exhaustion.   

 

There is not enough funding to do it all.  Council should be clear about what level of street 

improvement funding is being requested in addition to the funding provided through SB 1 and 

what line items should be eliminated.  The greater the level of additional funding, the bigger 

impact to other areas of service. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the City Council receive staff’s presentation 

and provide feedback about the proposed FY 2022-23 budget strategy.  

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. General Fund and Measure S Fiscal Analysis 

2. FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget PowerPoint slides 

Item 11

117



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

118



FY 20/21 FY 21/22 FY 22/23

BUDGET ACTIVITIES AMENDED AMENDED
PROPOSED 

BUDGET
RESOURCES 
*Beginning Balance 4,029,103             4,074,286             2,546,395                

Prior FY Adjustment (368,241)               -                         -                            
Revised Beginning Balance 3,660,862             4,074,286             2,546,395                

Local Taxes/Fees
  Property Taxes 1,796,200             1,757,500             1,819,700                
  RDA Residual Property Tax 691,319                 691,297                 691,297                   
  Sales Taxes 1,930,447             2,366,302             2,414,400                
  Measure S (Revenue) 2,812,000             3,555,648             3,578,350                
  Other Taxes (TOT & Cannabis, F. Fees) 1,446,967             2,831,539             3,205,316                

  Subtotal Local Taxes 8,676,933             11,202,286           11,709,063              

Licenses & Permits 382,188                 748,188                 1,199,302                
Fines & Forfeitures 393,500                 393,500                 386,600                   
Use of Money 20,000                   49,500                   58,010                     
Intergovernmental 2,804,692             3,145,900             3,368,400                
Charges for Services 2,427,600             3,055,706             3,725,851                
Intragovernmental 91,000                   91,000                   91,000                     
Misc Revenues 176,465                 -                         -                            
Transfers In 1,165,800             2,114,143             533,652                   

Subtotal Revenues 7,461,245             9,597,937             9,362,815                

Total Revenues 16,138,178           20,800,223           21,071,878             

TOTAL RESOURCES 19,799,040           24,874,509           23,618,273             

USE OF RESOURCES

Salaries & Wages 6,195,059             7,671,320             6,723,572                
Payroll Benefits & Taxes 3,902,820             5,064,088             5,208,267                

Subtotal Personnel Services 10,097,879           12,735,408           11,931,839              

Services & Supplies 3,983,910             4,783,111             5,181,316                
Interdepartmental Charges 1,772,005             1,786,713             2,025,299                
Non-Recurring Charges 578,600                 1,033,123             1,025,900                

Subtotal Operating 6,334,515             7,602,947             8,232,515                

Transfers Out 1,652,600             1,275,558             1,265,978                
Major Capital 531,000                 544,900                 340,000                   
Debt Service 169,300                 169,300                 160,340                   
Contingencies & Reserves 35,200                   -                         -                            

Subtotal Non-Operating 2,388,100             1,989,758             1,766,318                

TOTAL USE OF RESOURCES 18,820,494           22,328,114           21,930,672             

Ending Balance 978,546                 2,546,395 1,687,600

Ending Balance AFTER  Reserve 448,166

Additional amount to Reserve 1,239,434

Reserve Balance (Fund 015) 3,146,700                     3,146,700                     3,146,700                       

City of Suisun City
GENERAL FUND  AND MEASURE S FUNDS FISCAL ANALYSIS

FY 2021 Budget Through FY 2023 Proposed Budget 

Item 11 
Attachment 1

119



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

120



1

FY 2022-23 

Proposed 

Budget

BUDGET WORKSHOP

May 3, 2022

Agenda

• General Fund & Measure S Proposed

Budget

• Costs Reduction Options

• Two Scenarios

• Discussion/Comments

1

2

Item 11 
Attachment 2

121



2

General Fund & Measure S Fund 
Overview

01

Total Resources:

$23,618,273 

• (Includes Beginning 
Balance of $2,546,395)

02
Total Expenditures:

$21,930,672

03

Ending Balance:

$1,687,600

04

Additional amount 
to Reserve:

$1,239,434

Ending Balance 
AFTER Reserve:

$448,166

Personnel 

Cost 

deducted 

from 

Proposed 

Budget

Personnel positions:

• Fire Captains (3) ($495K)

• Public Safety Dispatcher (2) ($195K)

• Computer Technician ($126K)

• Battalion Chief (3) ($559K)

• Code Enforcement ($116K)

• Community Services Officer ($116K)

• Police Officers (2) ($280K)

• Fire Engineers (3) ($433K)

Total ($2.3M)

3

4

Item 11 
Attachment 2

122



3

Street 

Improvements 

Funding Options

Cost 

Reduction 

Options 

Summary

Vacant Positions

• Total vacant positions – 16

• Funding

• Measure S – 10 positions

• ARPA – 6 positions

Reallocation/elimination 
of ARPA ProjectsTotal 

$3,050,644

5

6

Item 11 
Attachment 2

123



4

Cost Options 
–

Find Road 
money from 
vacant 
positions or 
unallocated 
ARPA

Position Amount Source

Captain positions (3) - new $    495,480 Measure S

Public Safety Dispatcher (2) - new $    194,638 Measure S

Computer Technician - new $    125,573 Measure S

Battalion Chief (3) positions – vacant $    559,131 Measure S

Code Enforcement - vacant $    116,249 Measure S

Community Services Officer – recruiting $    116,249 ARPA

Police Officers - (2) vacant $    279,924 ARPA

Fire Engineers - (3) – in background $    433,400 ARPA

Fire Rescue Vehicle – new $    350,000 ARPA

Homeless Project $    150,000 ARPA

Outdoor dining matching grant program $    50,000 ARPA

Wayfinding/Signage project $    75,000 ARPA

Economic Development Marketing $    45,000 ARPA

Public Space Broadband $    50,000 ARPA

Tablets for Councilmembers $    10,000 ARPA

Total $    3,050,644.00 

Scenario 1 - $2.3M

7

8

Item 11 
Attachment 2

124



5

Cost 

Reduction –

Scenario 1-

$2.3M

Personnel positions:

• New Captain positions (3) ($495K)

• Change Battalion Chief (3)
positions to Division Chief
position + Duty Pay ($259K)

• Community Services Officer
($116K)

• Police Officers (2) ($280K)

• Fire Engineers (3) ($433K)

Personnel Total ($1.6 M)

Cost Reduction – Scenario 1- $2.3M

Elimination of unallocated/Committed ARPA projects:

• Fire Rescue Vehicle ($350)

• Homelessness Project ($150K)

• Outdoor dining matching grant program ($50K)

• Wayfinding/Signage Project ($75K)

• Economic Development Marketing ($45K)

• Public Space Broadband ($50K)

• Tablets for Councilmembers ($10K)

Projects Total ($730K)

9

10

Item 11 
Attachment 2

125



6

Cost Options –

Find up to 
$2.3M Road 
money from 
vacant 
positions or 
unallocated 
ARPA

Position Amount Source

Captain positions (3) - new $    0 Measure S

Public Safety Dispatcher (2) - new $    194,638 Measure S

Computer Technician - new $    125,573 Measure S

Battalion Chief (3) positions – vacant = Div

Chief + Duty Pay $    300,000 Measure S

Code Enforcement- vacant $    116,249 Measure S

Community Services Officer – recruiting $    0 ARPA

Police Officers - (2) vacant $    0 ARPA

Fire Engineers - (3) in background $    0 ARPA

Fire Rescue Vehicle – new $    0 ARPA

Homeless Project $    0 ARPA

Outdoor dining matching grant program $    0 ARPA

Wayfinding/Signage project $    0 ARPA

Economic Development Marketing $    0 ARPA

Public Space Broadband $    0 ARPA

Tablets for Councilmembers $    0 ARPA

Savings $    2,314,184 

Scenario 2 - $1.1M

11

12

Item 11 
Attachment 2

126



7

Cost 

Reduction –

Scenario 2 -

$1.1M

Personnel positions:

• Change Battalion Chief (3)
positions to Division Chief position
+ Duty Pay ($259K)

• Community Services Officer
($116K)

Personnel Total ($375K)

Cost Reduction – Scenario 2 - $1.1M

Elimination of unallocated/Committed ARPA projects:

• Fire Rescue Vehicle ($350)

• Homelessness Project ($150K)

• Outdoor dining matching grant program ($50K)

• Wayfinding/Signage Project ($75K)

• Economic Development Marketing ($45K)

• Public Space Broadband ($50K)

• Tablets for Councilmembers ($10K)

Projects Total ($730K)

13

14

Item 11 
Attachment 2

127



8

Cost Options –

Find up to 
$1.1M Road 
money from 
vacant 
positions or 
unallocated 
ARPA

Position Amount Source

Captain positions (3) - new $    495,480 Measure S

Public Safety Dispatcher (2) - new $    194,638 Measure S

Computer Technician - new $    125,573 Measure S

Battalion Chief (3) positions – vacant = Div

Chief + Duty pay $    300,000 Measure S

Code Enforcement- vacant $    116,249 Measure S

Community Services Officer – recruiting $    0 ARPA

Police Officers - vacant $    279,924 ARPA

Fire Engineers (3) – in background $    433,400 ARPA

Fire Rescue Vehicle – new $    0 ARPA

Homeless Project $    0 ARPA

Outdoor dining matching grant program $    0 ARPA

Wayfinding/Signage project $    0 ARPA

Economic Development Marketing $    0 ARPA

Public Space Broadband $    0 ARPA

Tablets for Councilmembers $    0 ARPA

Savings $    1,105,380 

Discussion/Comments

Thank you!

15

16

128



PREPARED BY:  Elena Gerli, City Attorney 

REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY:  Greg Folsom, City Manager 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 

 

MEETING DATE May 3, 2022 

 

CITY AGENDA ITEM: The City Attorney recommends that the City Council take one of the 

following actions: 

a. Adopt Resolution No. 2022-____, Appointing Councilmember ________________ to the 

Vacant Mayor Seat For the Remainder of the Current Term; or, 

b. Direct staff to return to Council with the appropriate resolution(s) to hold an election on 

November 8, 2022 to satisfy the requirements of the general election and a special election 

in accordance with the Elections Code and the Government Code; or 

c. Take further action at Council’s discretion. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: Appointment will have a minimal cost. Calling the election for November 8, 

2022 should not cost the City any additional funds, or at most $4,000-$5,000. The County Registrar’s 

fees for FY 2021-22 were $5.00 per registered voter, and $0.25 per registered voter for each 

additional contest. There are currently 16,974 registered voters in Suisun City. The fees may increase 

for the FY 2022-23. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN: Ensure Good Governance  

 

BACKGROUND:   

On April 5, 2022, then-Mayor Wilson was elected to a vacant State Assembly seat and resigned 

from her position as Mayor. The result is that the Mayor’s seat is currently vacant. The Mayor Pro 

Tem has assumed the duties of the Mayor, in accordance with Section 2.2 of the Council Norms 

& Procedures. 

 

On April 19, 2022, the Council discussed the following options to fill the vacant seat: (1) call a 

special election for November 8, 2022; (2) initiate the application process to appoint someone to 

the vacant seat until the election; or (3) provide direction to the City Attorney’s Office to return at 

a future meeting with the appropriate documentation to appoint one of the sitting Councilmembers 

to the Mayor’s office. Council directed the City Attorney’s Office to return with the necessary 

procedures and documents for the Council to appoint one of its members to the Mayor’s seat, and 

in the alternative, if Council does not appoint one of its members to the Mayor’s seat, to move 

forward with an election, as required by Section 34902(a) of the Government Code. 

 

STAFF REPORT:     

Government Code Section 34902(a) provides that “[i]n the case of a vacancy in the office of the 

[elected] mayor for any reason, the council shall fill the vacancy by appointment. If the council fails 

to fill it within 60 days, it shall call an election to fill the vacancy to be held on the next established 

election date to be held not less than 114 days thereafter. A person appointed or elected to fill a 

vacancy shall hold office for the unexpired term of the former incumbent.” The next available 

election date is November 8, 2022. 

 

Item 12

129



01107.0001/786004.3  

It should be noted that the statute for the filling of an elected mayor’s office is worded differently 

than the statute for the filling of a council vacancy; the plain language of Section 34902(a) suggests 

that the election can be called after the 60 days have passed. Practically, this means the Council 

should be able to adopt the resolution for the Mayor’s election at the same time that it adopts all the 

other election resolutions in June or July of this year. The key detail is that the resolution for the 

Mayor election must be called no later than 114 days before November 8, 2022. Staff is in discussion 

with the County’s Registrar’s Office regarding the most efficient manner for this process and will 

present resolutions to the City Council at the appropriate time if the Council so directs. 

 

One of the issues that came up for discussion at the April 19, 2022, Council meeting was what the 

consequences are of a sitting councilmember being appointed. If a sitting councilmember is 

appointed, that councilmember will automatically vacate their council seat. 

 

If the appointed councilmember’s term is up in November 2022, then they will have the option to 

run either for re-election to their City Council member seat or run for Mayor (no person may run for 

more than one public office). If the appointed councilmember is successfully elected to their City 

Council member seat, then they will serve as a City Council member. If they are successful in 

running for Mayor, then they will continue to serve as Mayor. If they are unsuccessful in either 

scenario, they will no longer be on the City Council.  

 

If the appointed councilmember’s term is not up in November 2022, then they will have to either run 

for Mayor (in order to continue to be Mayor) or run for election in one of the other two 

councilmember seats that are up for election in November 2022. If they are successfully elected to 

Mayor or one of the two councilmember seats up for election in November 2022, then they will 

continue to serve as Mayor or as a councilmember, respectively. If they are not successful in either 

scenario, then they no longer serve on the City Council and will have to wait until 2024 to run again.  

 

If one of the councilmembers is appointed, following adoption of the resolution, the councilmember 

can be sworn in and take over the Mayor’s seat immediately. 

 

If one of the councilmembers is appointed, this will leave a vacancy on the council. The process to 

fill the seat is very similar to the process to appoint the mayor. Staff would return at the next meeting 

with an item providing council with options and a time line. The options would be to either call an 

election or to appoint an individual to the empty seat. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the City Council take one of the 

following actions: 

1. Adopt Resolution No. 2022-____, Appointing Councilmember ________________ to the 

Vacant Mayor Seat For the Remainder of the Current Term; or, 

2. Direct staff to return to Council with the appropriate resolution(s) to hold an election on 

November 8, 2022 to satisfy the requirements of the general election and a special election 

in accordance with the Elections Code and the Government Code; or 

3. Take further action at Council’s discretion. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   

Item 12

130



01107.0001/786004.3  

1. Resolution No. 2022-___: A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Suisun City 

Adopting Procedures Relating to the Filling of a Vacancy For the Mayor’s Seat 

 

2. PowerPoint Presentation 

 

Item 12

131



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

132



 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

APPOINTING COUNCILMEMBER ________________ TO THE VACANT MAYOR 

SEAT FOR THE REMAINDER OF THE CURRENT TERM 

WHEREAS, on April 5, 2022, then-Mayor Lori Wilson was elected to State office 

and resigned her office effective 11:50 p.m. of the same day. 

WHEREAS, as a result of the Mayor’s resignation and assumption of the State office, 

the Mayor’s seat is now vacant. 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Suisun City considered a general 

business item on its April 19, 2022 agenda, where they provided the City Attorney’s Office 

with direction regarding the filling of the vacant seat. 

WHEREAS, the City Council directed the City Attorney to return at the May 3, 2022 

meeting with an agenda item to appoint a current councilmember to Mayor’s seat, and in the 

event no agreement is reached, to call for a special election to occur at the next available 

election. 

WHEREAS, the City Council now desires to appoint Councilmember ____________ 

to fill the remainder of the Mayor’s term. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Suisun City as follows: 

Section 1. The recitals hereto are true and correct and by this reference 

incorporated herein. 

Section 2. Pursuant to Government Code Section 34902(a), the City Council 

hereby appoints Councilmember _______________ as the City’s Mayor for the remainder of 

former Mayor Wilson’s term, until such time as the new Mayor who shall be elected on 

November 8, 2022, takes office. 

Section 3. If any provision of this Resolution or the application of any such 

provision to any person or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other 

provisions or applications of this Resolution that can be given effect without the invalid 

provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this Resolution are severable. The 

City Council declares that the City Council would have adopted this Resolution irrespective 

of the invalidity of any particular portion of this Resolution. 

Section 4. This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force immediately after 

its adoption by the City Council, and shall expire upon the appointment of an individual to the 

vacant Mayor seat or upon the call of an election, whichever occurs first. 

Item 12 
Attachment 1

133



 

Resolution No. 2022- 

Adopted  

Page 2 of 2 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at the Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Suisun City duly held on May 3, 2022, by the following vote: 

AYES:  Council Members: 

NOES:  Council Members: 

ABSENT:  Council Members: 

ABSTAIN: Council Members: 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 3rd day of May 2022.  

 

_________________________________  

Anita Skinner 

City Clerk 

Item 12 
Attachment 1

134



1

Filling a Vacancy on Council
Part Deux

Elena Q. Gerli, City Attorney

Elected Mayor

Appointing a councilmember

BACKGROUND

April 19, 2022 Council meeting options:

1. Call a special election for the next available
election, to be held no earlier than 114 days

2. Adopt an application process to appoint
someone

3. Give direction for appointment of a
councilmember

2

1

2

Item 12 
Attachment 2

135



2

CONSEQUENCES OF APPOINTMENT

Councilmember whose term is up November 2022
Either run for re-election to their City Council

member seat or
Run for Mayor
No person may run for more than one public office.

If the appointed councilmember is elected to their
City Council member seat, then they will serve as a
City Council member again.
If they are elected to Mayor, then they will

continue to serve as Mayor.
If not elected to any office, they will no longer be

on the City Council.

3

CONSEQUENCES OF APPOINTMENT

Councilmember whose term is NOT up in November
Either run for Mayor (in order to continue to be

Mayor) or
Run for election in one of the other two

councilmember seats that are up for election in
November 2022.
If they are elected to Mayor or one of the two

councilmember seats up for election in November
2022, then they will continue to serve as Mayor or
as a councilmember, respectively.
If not elected to any office, then they will no

longer serve on the City Council and will have to
wait until 2024 to run again.

4

3

4

Item 12 
Attachment 2

136


	Agenda 5:30 p.m. Special Closed Session Meeting
	Agenda 6:30 pm Regular Meeting
	Item 2.a - Proclamation National Safe Boating Week
	Item 2.b - Proclamation National Police Week and Peace Officers Memorial Day
	Item 3 - Teleconference Meeting Procedures
	Item 4 - Boating and Waterways Funding
	Item 5 - Adoption of Ordinance Use of Military Equipment
	Item 6 - Agreement with Caltrans for Green Stormwater Infrastructure Project along Eastern Perimeter of the Park and Ride Lot
	Item 7 - Seventh Amendment to the 1965 Agreement with FSSD
	Item 8 - Modification of First Time Homebuyer Program
	Item 9 - Minutes - March 29, 2022
	Item 10 - Discussion and Direction MCE
	Item 11 - Fiscal Year 2022-23 Annual Presentation of Conceptual Budget Strategy
	Item 12 - Adopt Resolution or Direct Staff - Vacant Mayor Seat



